EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
uTl

UTI International (Singapore)Private Ltd.

Praveen Jagwani, CEO and Director
048617 08 02

3 Raffles Place, #08-02 Bharat Building,
Singapore 048617

03 6212 8316

Horizon Trust - South African Rand Money Market
Fund
200 1,502

2021 30 UFJ 7.51

1/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Horizon Trust - South African Rand Money Market Fund

UTl
200 1,502
2021 30 UFJ
7.51
2021 10 2022 30

https://www._shinseibank.com/
080-7118-6726 080-7063-5479

2/258



10
11
12

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2008 10 17

STeFl

2006 11 15
2008 10 17
2008 12
2008 12
2015 15

4/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

il e

RFA X FPFAE—
T MZZVH-FF- [FoTTT T
vH—rw—Fo b TrieF

R o= i 7 K 2 #
UTI A ¥ #—Fiatnr (i@ e EE i GAS. (FA4=2) UIF2F

i) FHA A=k NI Ty i
’ 7 e (7 7 v FRIEDZ IR
(77 o FYFEECDMIA] - FrEESegs,
7y FEEARORBT - HEL)

Hm k7Y o |
AR A i 5

> R g i

- it

4 EEEASE E-‘: it 5
EE: i a

FAF 4T T e 1 |
Hemiy om s 1 [ i
YIF K B e TREICRE (AT A bk T
5 ' B

(Fr s FHEMED # 138 B — . ) ] E

: i 2 BE LALLT f— Frf-tP—i ) :
BRLFI ) 0 ~x (AnsyE) ViFer | M|
# :

- (BRI RS (AT 5, SRR IAT |

LT 117 2 RE 8 RS L O e BOI RS (AT X 85) |
HFZUH i

- BEF-L | ;
iy o B - R BRTT i

F AL 2T LT 5A = Tk il i
(F o 7":7;_:'" ‘:'::5" ) B o W 2R SR SIHERIGIESRI TR S | |
NIFs P = S -3 i

. (RA&ICHT S 5

(772 FERED » S e 1 (7 7 FEEORETRE) i
el FRATHS 22 L) r : i

BT 5SS

(AARicEiITA 7y > FIESOE
i« WUEE L oo Nl dEEs)

5/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

uTl 2008 10 17
2008 10 17

2015 15

UTI International

Singapore Private Ltd.

G.A.S.
G.A.S. Cayman Limited
2008 11 17
Ninety One Guernsey
Limited
SA 2008 11
Ninety One SA Proprietary
Limited
2008 10 17
2018 16
SMT Fund Services Ireland
Limited
2008 10 17
2020
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited, London Branch
2008 11
2015 15

6/258



32

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50 2006 11 15

289
CMS CMS
110 23

25 29
34 36 36

600 8,522 2021
808,700 600

2021 30 UFJ
80.87

7/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2006 11 15

2021

uTl GY FN 600 100

393

1925

50

150

8/258



31

EDINETOOOO

OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)

CIMA

31

180
31

23 25

9/258

EDINET

CIMA

CIMA

Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

2009



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

EDINET

https://www.shinseibank.com/

CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

10/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

11/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

STeFl

10

10

STeFl

SA

12/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

59 2021 30

18
2021 30
Lisa MacLeod

GDP

13/258



2,500

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

- B 1 SRR «— 5
-
L r _‘]\
ATl g =2 R 7
a:.
L J L J L J JL
ST
= T U BRI 7 UA BooL T UF

v

RO = F - DT

v

— — 1 T8 1) 5 - =
A )& - o W) BRE ) & -
v
EFILICLSE
T ERE R TR

14/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

RMAC

15/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AbsrE | CEFES sREm A L T

FREET S ik
Wil -4 D RAEDHS £Hlvs0: 2—F 125 (RMAC)
- EEF LA F- L

CETFAUA . DL F A
- A 0- RILFATIRE S F - L

B A T ORI

B

SHBLURS N

A=k UA

16/258



EDINETOOOO
O0O0000000000000000000000000000000(E21970)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

EE) - BRI EA AT

VFUAHH. 2 LR -FRF ESG. T AR
* SUYY e

Fa— - F4UTTUR

el S ) b
BH

- / B LRS- AT
IRE RO 78 Tra(DET
B oD ., aHELUERICL 2ER
g RE

17/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

® pRREE } mih

* SR Il BT R

- mAOFE— g | = /% iE |

- & - g1, A T AT -

& BERl - EeEE R L

- . & g e fieh e M
& Lot Pl ® W e, AlEmE R et R

* EHORE—F L HE 6T
| !

* T2 el
* CRANTE . IEE
® chomAtiE Bt g Rzl | Malg

* ESEE L L ewE ERT S Bl
T A b AR -* 218 fidk o
: : o

18/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

16.7 1 0.17 16.7 1 0.17
16.7 1 0.17 16.7 2 0.33
22.3 1 0.22 22.3 2 0.45
11.0 1 0.11 11.0 1 0.11
11.1 2 0.22 11.1 0 0.00
22.2 1 0.22 22.2 0 0.00
100.0 0.44 100.0 0.06
e —T—
16.7 1 0.17 16.7 1 0.17
16.7 1 0.17 16.7 0 0.00
22.3 1 0.22 22.3 0 0.00
11.0 1 0.11 11.0 1 0.11
11.1 2 0.22 11.1 2 0.22
22.2 0 0.00 22.2 2 0.44
100.0 0.22 100.0 0.61

Ma 0594 0 s ale ol u a0 i e o S o o o o
YL A P P g P e P P o P P P P o

19/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Lisa MaclLeod

Lisa MacLeod
1997
1995

SBC

20/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
popoooopgoodooooooodn

EAIF
EAIF
EAIF

21/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ISAE 2402 UK AAF 01 06 US SAS 70

22/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DLC

DLC

0.01

0.01

23/258



EDINETOOOO

OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

F2 p2
F1+ P1
AA- Aa3 100
Aa3
F1 P1 A+ A- Al
40
Al A3 A3
F2 P2 BBB+ BBB- 10
F1+ P1
AA- Aa3 25
Aa3
F1 P1 A+ A- Al
10
Al A3 A3
F2 p2 BBB+ BBB- 2.5

50

24/258

BBB-



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 105

44

26 198

18 108

15

16

10

35

35

25/258



35

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35

26/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

27/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AEOI

AEOI

TIA
AEOI

AEOI

CSA

29/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32/258



OECD

FATCA

CRS
CRS
CRS

30

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FATCA
FATCA

FATCA

FATCA

OECD
CRS
CRS
CRS

FATCA

33/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

OFAC EU

OFAC EU

OFAC EU

36/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

37/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

38/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

39/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.01

40/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

41/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VaR

VaR

42/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

thinkFolio

43/258



( F7/FOSiERER

1 O OF RS - FMEERDRE
2016E8R~202 | £7HOSEMICEIT 577 /FDSE
EHERIOSCEOEREGRE(BRAFRF) & FURES

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

< )

COISIE. T7/FENROERES S A EERNCIEE
TESFIHEELE DD T, KDY STLEURMICSITS

FFAREN TN RESSALD
o2l o id

(ERxEER)OBERLICBOTT. FMMEE(EARRG)OTFRLENEE. Tr/RE RN

SRS S (RN —2) EOMTHRUIEBDTY.

2] (%) (201 8F88~ 202 15FE7H)
oS 100
o il
803 g7g
00 60
oo0s 40
- 19.2
- R AR | OS5 DRREES TN -6.8
=57 FOEHREE(EH) -20 aso 125 AT
' | i L
=40
18/8 17/8 188 19/8 2ova 2147 IJrYFE O ENEmE FRRE OO SR FRER
. Bloomberg L.P. &L IHERRLSHO T —9% RO H-RE AR mRER LT
(CEE)

B SRS DS OEEmER. 201 5F8FR0I0S - DRRE@E (001 5/ R EERE LT #s Mo EdEE
SFEBEEBICT 7Y F~ERELCEHELTRELEBOTY.

# D7 FOFMBER (ERFRA) 2. EARLTOIFRNCSDS/EEMERIDYEONRZEEENLLT. TOR
EEERLLIEBOTY.

# ABRNEREOSADFNRER (EAFHA) . EAFLIOIFNICETEOHEROHENHELT. TOREESE
BHLIEEOTY.

# JrBFEfiBENERESSALOFMBEROERE. LEOSEMOSAENAICS I EMBERERNT. TNS0
T - Bk BVESSICLTERLEROTY.

# JrUFOSESMERDSCOHREGESD SUEMEEER. RRO1DACOEREGES SUTNICEDVTH
BUEMRERE-ERFSBSBE0ETY.

® J7EFOSMREER. ETARRTTHRENTSH. ARICRRENTEDIEA. LEH-T.ARICRBLEES,
LTELENEOMERELLDET,

# 2rFRARNEEESSAOTICERTSBOTREDERu.

o (LENEHEESSIERT A
B #-----TOP | X (EB2iAd)
Seif Eek- - FTSESEH DR @R (B<BH.AN—2)
B SEPITREES R
BXRN- - TI—L)—TEEEEFE MR
i Em-- FTSEMSRMER (F<E*x.A~—2)
EEI FTSEFREmBENENR (A~—2)
(E)SEPHFMEBSENE, Bloomberg LPTHBBLTLEY.

TOPIX (ME#@EER) 3. A WIS A (LUF [0 R SWE /| SOV ET, ) DANHETHD. MEONS.
AMEOLRE AAEEERENICHTSTATORN . W RIESES IFRPELTVET, B8, 772 FE. WM Rl ES|
AiC&D#E L BRIFEFRESNLDOTRE. WRREHFBEIFE. 77/ FORTGECEERCERATILDES AN
EHLTH.MEEFLERA.

FTSERER#SMIER (BFE<BF . A~—2).FTSEEREMNER (B<AX. A8 LUFTSEHREHBEMER
(A=) ICETST<TOHMTX. London Stock Exchange Group pleERFFOLTFNHOSIL—TRRICEMN
L. &#EML.FTSE International Limited. FTSE Fixed Income LLCEREETNSOBBSHSICE-THE
FNTLEY. London Stock Exchange Group pleH LU FOQIIL -G BHROER. BT FECEBREIMSELS
LESAMICOLT.OACHLTS—NOREERNVE T .

44/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.05

2021 31 885,563
0.40
2021 31 7,115,889
170,000
14,000
14,000

2021 31 170,000

0.40

45/258



2021 31
0.10
0.09

0.08

700,000
100

2021 31

1,195,516
2021 31

EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7,125,011
10
10 20
20
150
1,362,609
0.10
1,782,875

46/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25

1.05

2021 31 1,540,607

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

47/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15.315

2038 15

20.315
15.315 2038 20 15

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

15.315
2038 15

20.315
15.315 2038 20 15

48/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

81 50
2013 11 29 FATCA us
1GA US 1GA FATCA
2014 TIA
US FATCA US FATCA US IGA
US FATCA
US FATCA
TIA

TIA IRS

49/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TIA
IRS
50 OECD CRS
2014 10 29
OECD 2017
2015 10 16 2016 12 19 CRS
US IGA
100 CRS TIA
TIA

CRS

AEOI

50/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021
1,055,636,846.99 63.98
486,717,631.27 29.50
106,300,000.00 6.44
1,648,654,478.26 99.92
1,251,604.47 0.08
1,649,906,082.73
100.00
12,391
2021
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
1. 122,500,000.00| 122,400,115.41| 122,400,115.41 .42
BILLS OPCT 11AUG21 11
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
2. 121,880,000.00| 121,314,576.94| 121,314,576.94 .35
BILLS OPCT 15SEP21 15
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
3. 113,470,000.00| 112,584,439.82| 112,584,439.82 .82
BILLS OPCT 130CT21 10 13
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
4. 89,030,000.00| 88,824,846.23| 88,824,846.23 .38
BILLS OPCT 25AUG21 25
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
5. 80,110,000.00| 79,860,495.43| 79,860,495.43 .84
BILLS OPCT 01SEP21
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
6. 73,880,000.00| 73,478,566.70| 73,478,566.70 .45
BILLS OPCT 22SEP21 22
CALL ACCOUNT 2049
7. 3.450 72,000,000.00f 72,000,000.00| 72,000,000.00 .36
SHINSEI HSBC BANK 12 31
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
8. 64,260,000.00| 63,633,178.46| 63,633,178.46 .86
BILLS OPCT 270CT21 10 27
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
9. 59,510,000.00] 58,775,005.70| 58,775,005.70 .56
BILLS OPCT 17NOV21 11 17
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2021
10. 5.167 58,000,000.00| 58,276,364.65| 58,276,364.65 .53
LTD FRN 30DEC21 12 30
NEDBANK LIMITED FRN 2021
11. 5.092 56,000,000.00| 56,000,000.00| 56,000,000.00 .39
120CT21 10 12
ABSA BANK LIMITED 2021
12. 5.625 51,000,000.00f 51,000,000.00| 51,000,000.00 .09
FRN 20AUG21 20
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
13. 49,350,000.00| 48,803,377.24| 48,803,377.24 .96
BILLS OPCT 10NOV21 11 10
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
14. 45,690,000.00| 45,617,141.61| 45,617,141.61 .76
BILLS OPCT 18AUG21 18
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
15. 44,900,000.00| 44,895,340.36| 44,895,340.36 .72
BILLS OPCT 04AUG21
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021
16. 43,520,000.00| 42,955,622.97| 42,955,622.97 .60
BILLS OPCT 24N0OV21 11 24
STANDARD BANK OF SA 2021
17. 5.150 42,000,000.00| 42,037,037.06| 42,037,037.06 .55
LTD FRN 23AUG21 23
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SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021

18. 40,420,000.00| 40,258,117.80| 40,258,117.80| 2.44
BILLS OPCT 08SEP21
ABSA BANK LIMITED 2021

19. .642 32,000,000.00| 32,000,000.00] 32,000,000.00f 1.94
FRN 120CT21 10 12
SOUTH AFRICAN T 2021

20. 26,400,000.00| 26,130,251.88| 26,130,251.88| 1.58
BILLS OPCT 03NOV21 11
ABSA BANK LTD FRN 2021

21. .242 23,000,000.00] 23,000,000.00] 23,000,000.00f 1.39
050CT21 10
ABSA BANK LTD FRN 2021

22. .942 23,000,000.00] 23,000,000.00] 23,000,000.00f 1.39
110CT21 10 11
ABSA BANK LTD FRN 2021

23. .633 23,000,000.00] 23,000,000.00] 23,000,000.00f 1.39
15SEP21 15
GROWTHPOINT 2021

24. |PROPERTIES LTD FRN .432 10 18 20,500,000.00| 20,534,912.02| 20,534,912.02] 1.24
180CT2021
FDZAR SAN 3.85PCT 2021

25. .850 20,000,000.00] 20,000,000.00] 20,000,000.00f 1.21
10AUG21 10
NEDBANK LIMITED FRN 2021

26. JA17 20,000,000.00] 20,000,000.00f 20,000,000.00f 1.21
180CT21 10 18
NEDBANK LIMITED FRN 2021

27. .408 20,000,000.00] 20,000,000.00f 20,000,000.00f 1.21
250CT21 10 25
NEDBANK LTD FRN 2021

28. .233 20,000,000.00| 20,000,000.00| 20,000,000.00| 1.21
10SEP21 10
SOUTH AFRICAN 2022

29. 20,270,000.00| 19,834,446.65| 19,834,446.65| 1.20
TBILLS OPCT 26JAN22 26
GROWTHPOINT 2001

30. [PROPERTIES LTD FRN 413 15 18,000,000.00| 18,016,865.44| 18,016,865.44| 1.09
15SEP21

2021

2021
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2021

1,102,164,832.00 8,277 0.01 0.0751

2012
1,230,984,426.00 9,245 0.01 0.0751

2013
1,333,442,661.00 10,014 0.01 0.0751

2014
1,204,828,295.00 9,048 0.01 0.0751

2015
1,289,546,237.00 9,684 0.01 0.0751

2016
1,390,011,237.00 10,439 0.01 0.0751

2017

10
1,546,917,275.00 11,617 0.01 0.0751

2018

11
1,645,071,388.00 12,354 0.01 0.0751

2019

12
1,784,654,942.00 13,403 0.01 0.0751

2020

13
1,697,243,862.00 12,746 0.01 0.0751

2021
2020 1,825,947,775.86 13,713 0.01 0.0751
1,814,548,306.00 13,627 0.01 0.0751
10 1,805,483,854.70 13,559 0.01 0.0751
11 1,795,976,242.18 13,488 0.01 0.0751
12 1,761,975,091.38 13,232 0.01 0.0751
2021 1,749,875,357.45 13,142 0.01 0.0751
1,718,630,511.35 12,907 0.01 0.0751
1,697,243,862.00 12,746 0.01 0.0751
1,672,780,842.64 12,563 0.01 0.0751
1,654,418,360.89 12,425 0.01 0.0751
1,651,688,130.14 12,404 0.01 0.0751
1,649,906,082.73 12,391 0.01 0.0751
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0.01

2021
2020 28 0.00002426 0.0001821926
30 0.00002732 0.0002051732
10 30 0.00002325 0.0001746075
11 30 0.00002212 0.0001661212
12 30 0.00002102 0.0001578602
2021 29 0.00002140 0.0001607140
26 0.00002054 0.0001542554
31 0.00002435 0.0001828685
30 0.00002290 0.0001719790
28 0.00002176 0.0001634176
30 0.00002662 0.0001999162
30 0.00002445 0.0001836195
0.00043745 0.0032852495
0.00041634 0.0031267134
0.00041763 0.0031364013
0.00050597 0.0037998347
0.00055012 0.0041314012
0.00065228 0.0048986228
10 0.00062809 0.0047169559
11 0.00060205 0.0045213955
12 0.00060288 0.0045276288
13 0.00032840 0.0024662840
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27,873,936,510
(27,873,936,510)

29,497,200,812
(29,497,200,812)

110, 355,707,236
(110, 355,707,236)

50,481, 265,836
(50,481, 265,836)

37,659,975,926
(37,659,975,926)

123,176,997,146
(123,176,997,146)

61,091,613, 655
(61,091,613,655)

50,924,460, 767
(50,924,460,767)

133,344,150,034
(133,344,150,034)

29,252,332,114
(29,252,332,114)

42,113,709,851
(42,113,709,851)

120,482,772,297
(120,482,772,297)

40,223,998,573
(40,223,998,573)

31,752,151,342
(31,752,151,342)

128,954,619,528
(128,954,619,528)

45,160,579,574
(45,160,579,574)

35,114,107,439
(35,114,107,439)

139,001,091,663
(139,001,091,663)

10

144,873,819,277
(144,873,819,277)

129,183,287,500
(129,183,287,500)

154,691,623 ,440
(154,691,623 ,440)

11

75,236,791,178
(75,236,791,178)

65,421,334,118
(65,421,334,118)

164,507,080,500
(164,507,080,500)

12

68,044,669,115
68,044,669,115

54,086,340,044
54,086,340,044

178,465,409,571
178,465,409,571

13

56,892,263,113
56,892,263,113

65,633,427,714
65,633,427,714

169,724,244,970
169,724,244,970
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1933
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2010 2018
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33
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AML
AML
AML
AML
infoMLRO@sumitrustgas.com
2017 DPL 2017 18
2019 30 DPL
DPL
2016 679 EU GDPR
EEA
EEA EEA
GDPR EEA

GDPR

DPL
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23 103

2021 30
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2021 31

2021

590,647,096

1,245,803,394

4,435,759,691

9,355,983,489

2020

394,477,402

1,395,818,357

2,962,525,289

10,482,595,861

2,829,812 21,251,888 985,362 7,400,069
1,827,982 13,728,145 2,267,100 17,025,921
1,841,108,284 13,826,723,213 1,793,548,221 13,469,547,140
2,961,077 22,237,688 2,506,250 18,821,938
140,903,345 1,058,184,121 6,387,029 47,966,588
143,864,422 1,080,421,809 8,893,279 66,788,525

1,697,242,451

12,746,290,807

1,784,654,097

13,402,752,268

1,411 10,597 845 6,346
1,697,243,862 12,746,301,404 1,784,654,942 13,402,758,614
1,841,108,284 13,826,723,213 1,793,548,221 13,469,547,140

2021 15
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2021 31

2021 2020
7 269,620 2,024,846 237,025 1,780,058
7 79,784,175 599,179,154 129,756,362 974,470,279
(735,585) (5,524,243) (6,843,139) (51,391,974)
419,691 3,151,879 76,692 575,957
79,737,901 598,831,637 123,226,940 925,434,319
15,16 (170,000) (1,276,700) (170,000) (1,276,700)
15,16 (2,558,126) (19,211,526) (2.239,229) (16,816,610)
15,16 (885,563) (6,650,578) (856,872) (6,435,109)
15,16 (7,115,889) (53,440,326) (6,889,531) (51,740,378)
15 (7,125,011) (53,508, 833) (6,901,045) (51,826,848)
15 (1,782,875) (13,389,391) (1,725,266) (12,956, 748)
(616,645) (4,631,004) (682,005) (5,121,858)
(595,708) (4,473,767) (523,744) (3,933,317)
7 12) (90) (235) (1,765)
(328,242) (2,465,097) (136,660) (1,026,317)
(21,178,071) (159,047,313) (20,124 ,587) (151,135, 648)
58,559,830 439,784,323 103,102,353 774,298,671
58,559,830 439,784,323 103,102,353 774,298,671

771258



2020

2021

2019

2020

31

31

17

17

1,784,654,097

568,922,631

(656,334,277)

2021 31

13,402,752,268

4,272,608,959

(4,929,070,420)
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845

58,559,830

(58,559,264)

6,346

439,784,323

(439,780,073)

1,784,654,942

58,559,830

568,922,631
(656,334,277)

(58,559,264)

13,402,758,614

439,784,323

4,272,608,959
(4,929,070,420)

(439,780,073)

1,697,242,451 12,746,290,807 1,411 10,597 1,697,243,862 12,746,301,404
1,645,070,806 12,354,481,753 582 4,371 1,645,071,388 12,354,486,124
103,102,353 774,298,671 103,102,353 774,298,671

680,446,691 5,110,154,649 680,446,691 5,110,154,649

(540,863,400)

(4,061,884,134)

(103,102,090)

(774,296,696)

(540,863,400)

(103,102,090)

(4,061,884,134)

(774,296 ,696)

1,784,654,097

13,402,752,268

845

6,346

1,784,654,942

13,402,758,614
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2021 31
2021 2020
58,559,830 439,784,323 103,102,353 774,298,671
150,014,963 1,126,612,372 (15,354,396) (115,311,514)
439,118 3,297,776 164,262 1,233,608
134,516,316 1,010,217,533 (300,535) (2,257,018)
343,530,227 2,579,912,005 87,611,684 657,963,747

522,518,166

3,924,111,427

598,608,051

4,495,546,463

(1,844,450) (13,851,820) (603,904) (4,535,319)
(656,334,277)  (4,929,070,420) (540,863,400)  (4,061,884,134)
454,827 3,415,751 (1,224,028) (9,192,450)
(12,154,799) (91,282,540) (21,263, 450) (159,688,510)
(147,360,533)  (1,106,677,603) 34,653,269 260,246,050
196,169,694 1,473,234,402 122,264,953 918,209,797

394,477,402

2,962,525,289

272,212,449

2,044,315,492

31
590,647,096 4,435,759,601 394,477,402 2,962,525,289

266,927 2,004,622 240,281 1,804,510

102,552,596 770,169,996 129,825,027 974,985,953

(12) (90) (235) (1,765)
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2008 10 17

150 2008 12 2008 12
STeFl
2008 10 17
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2020 31
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IFRS
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IFRS

10

FVTPL

2020

2020
IFRS

FVTPL

FVTPL
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FVTPL
2021 31 2020 31
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FVTPL
G.A.S.
BBH
BBH BBH
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FVTPL

81 2020
2008 50

0.01

0.01
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IAS 32
IAS 32
IAS 32

2021 31 1,697,243,862 2020
1,784,654,942

FVTPL
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2021
590,647,096 590,647,096
FVTPL 1,245,803,39% 1,245,803,39%
2,829,812 2,829,812
1,827,982 1,827,982
1,245,803,394 595,304,890 1,841,108,284
2,961,077 2,961,077
140,903, 345 140,903,345
143,864,422 143,864,422
2020
394,477,402 394,477,402
FVTPL 1,395,818,357 1,395,818,357
985,362 985,362
2,267,100 2,267,100
1,395,818,357 397,729,864 1,793,548,221
2,506,250 2,506,250
6,387,029 6,387,029
8,893,279 8,893,279
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2021 31 2020
62,290,170 3.67 2020 69,790,918
3.91
Covid-19
2021 31
2021 12
590,647,096 590,647,096
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FVTPL
520,901,403 456,637,365 260,223,787 8,040,839  1,245,803,39%4
2,829,812 2,829,812
1,827,982 1,827,982
520,901,403 456,637,365 260,223,787 590,647,096 12,698,633  1,841,108,284
2,961,077 2,961,077
140,903,345 140,903,345
143,864,422 143,864,422
520,901,403 456,637,365 260,223,787
2020 31
2020 12
394,477,402 394,477,402
FVTPL
384,015,955 456,457,939 524,987,765 30,356,698  1,395,818,357
985,362 985,362
2,267,100 2,267,100
384,015,955 456,457,939 524,987,765 394,477,402 33,609,160  1,793,548,221
2,506,250 2,506,250
6,387,029 6,387,029
8,893,279 8,803,279
384,015,955 456,457,939 524,987,765
2021 31 0.5
2,450,453 2020 6,802,248 0.5

JiBar
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14
2021 31 2020 31
S&P

G.A.S.

A-

BBH
BBH BBH BBH
BBH BBH
BBH BBH A+
BBH
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BBH
BBH
BBH BBH
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BBH
FVTPL
S&P GDC
2021 2020
AAA 1,174,172,042 67.32 AAA 334,750,667 18.71
AA+ 240,140,210 13.77 AA+ 439,670,459 24.57
AA 329,791,142 18.91 AA 1,014,697,231 56.72
1,744,103,394 100.00 1,789,118,357 100.00
2021 31 2020 31
ECL

12
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12
50
2018 IFRS
2021 31
2020 31
2021
FVTPL
77,038,225 77,038,225
8,040,839 8,040,839
747,672,042 747,672,042
413,052,288 413,052,288

1,245,803,394 1,245,803,39%4

95/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

FVTPL
165,161,115 165,161,115
30,356,698 30,356,698
1,200,300,544 1,200,300,544
1,395,818,357 1,395,818,357

2020
FVTPL
FVTPL

2021
590,647,096 590,647,096
2,829,812 2,829,812
1,827,982 1,827,982
590,647,096 4,657,794 595,304,890
2,961,077 2,961,077
140,903,345 140,903,345
143,864,422 143,864,422

2020
394,477,402 394,477,402
985,362 985,362
2,267,100 2,267,100
394,477,402 3,252,462 397,729,864
2,506,250 2,506,250
6,387,029 6,387,029

8,893,279 8,893,279
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11
BBH 92,347,096 2020
1,177,402 498,300,000 2020 393,300,000
12
2021 2020
8,624 5,930
1,808,608 2,261,170
10,750
1,827,982 2,267,100
13
2021 2020
134,818,574
15 5,964,257 6,103,027
120,514 284,002
140,903,345 6,387,029
14
2020 178,465,409,571 1,784,654,097
56,892,263,113 568,922,631
(65,633,427,714) (656,334,277)

2021 31 169,724,244,970 1,697,242,451
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2019 164,507,080,500 1,645,070,806

68,044,669,115 680,446,691

(54,086,340,044) (540, 863,400)
2020 31 178,465,409,571 1,784,654,097

1AS 32
21 2020 21 SBI 65 2020
65
15
170,000
14,000

1,000,000,000
0.10
1,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
0.09
2,000,000,000
0.08
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700,000
150
100
0.05
0.40
0.40
0.10
2021 2020
41,994 42,380
888,865 512,626
213,509 220,805
1,707,935 1,774,829
1,707,846 1,777,681
426,967 444,349

977,141 1,330,357
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5,964,257 6,103,027
16
15
15
21 2020 21 SBI 65
2020 65
2021 31 2020 31
17
2021 31 58,559,264 2020
103,102,090 2021 31 46,404,465
2020 81,838,640
18
2021 2020
1,697,243,862 1,784,654,942
169,724,244,970 178,465,409,571

0.01 0.01
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31

2021
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2020
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31
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Nedbank 7.125% 01-Apr-21
Nedbank 5.225% 05-May-21

Nedbank 5.2% 11-May-21
Nedbank 4.4% 15-Jul-21

Standard Bank of South Africa 6.4% 07-Apr-21
Standard Bank of South Africa 5.125% 12-May-21

Absa Bank FRN 06-Apr-21
Absa Bank FRN 09-Apr-21
Absa Bank FRN 12-Apr-21
Absa Bank FRN 12-Apr-21
Absa Bank FRN 15-Apr-21
Absa Bank FRN 20-May-21
Absa Bank FRN 20-May-21
Absa Bank FRN 15-Jun-21

Firstrand Bank FRN 04-Jun-21
Investec Bank FRN 12-April-21
Investec Bank FRN 07-May-21

Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN
Nedbank FRN

12-Apr-21
12-Apr-21
14-Apr-21
19-Apr-21
19-Apr-21
26-Apr-21
21-May-21
24-May-21
10-Jun-21

2021
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31

45,000,000
1,000,000
12,000,000
14,000,000
2,000,000
3,000,000

23,000,000

2,000,000
32,000,000
23,000,000
52,000,000
51,000,000
13,000,000
23,000,000

1,000,000
23,000,000
14,000,000
56,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
13,000,000
12,000,000
20,000,000
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45,000,000 2.64
1,001,268 0.06
12,015,969 0.71
14,015,746 0.83
2,000,934 0.12
3,004,308 0.18
77,038,225 4.54
23,000,000 1.35
2,000,464 0.12
32,000,000 1.89
23,000,000 1.35
52,026,099 3.07
51,000,000 3.00
13,000,000 0.77
23,000,000 1.35
1,001,963 0.06
23,007,968 1.36
14,015,794 0.83
56,000,000 3.30
5,000,000 0.29
5,000,000 0.29
5,000,000 0.29
20,000,000 1.18
20,000,000 1.18
13,000,000 0.77
12,000,000 0.71
20,000,000 1.18
413,052,288 24.34




South African T-Bill 0% 07-Apr-21
South African T-Bill 0% 14-Apr-21
South African T-Bill 0% 21-Apr-21
South African T-Bill 0% 28-Apr-21
South African T-Bill 0% 05-May-21
South African T-Bill 0% 12-May-21
South African T-Bill 0% 19-May-21
South African T-Bill 0% 26-May-21
South African T-Bill 0% 02-Jun-21
South African T-Bill 0% 23-Jun-21
South African T-Bill 0% 30-Jun-21
South African T-Bill 0% 14-Jul-21
South African T-Bill 0% 21-Jul-21
South African T-Bill 0% 28-Jul-21
South African T-Bill 0% 04-Aug-21
South African T-Bill 0% 11-Aug-21
South African T-Bill 0% 18-Aug-21
South African T-Bill 0% 25-Aug-21
South African T-Bill 0% 01-Sep-21
South African T-Bill 0% 08-Sep-21
South African T-Bill 0% 15-Sep-21
South African T-Bill 0% 22-Sep-21

FVTPL

Shinsei
Shinsei
Shinsei
Shinsei

Absa Bank
Citibank
HSBC Bank
Investec Bank
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43,870,000
103,770,000
41,710,000
18,820,000
117,400,000
34,950,000
37,420,000
35,400,000
16,000,000
27,000,000
27,000,000
25,980,000
17,350,000
17,000,000
18,000,000
17,900,000
17,000,000
21,000,000
20,360,000
17,590,000
43,780,000
34,050,000

21,200,000
500,000
426,000,000
50,600,000
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43,841,003 2.58
103,627,622 6.11
41,627,287 2.45
18,770,028 1.11
116,989,344 6.89
34,803,794 2.05
37,235,987 2.19
35,197,547 2.07
15,892,496 0.94
26,752,135 1.58
26,726,758 1.57
25,679,823 1.51
17,136,869 1.01
16,780,766 0.99
17,747,647 1.05
17,628,416 1.04
16,724,173 0.99
20,638,781 1.22
19,985,605 1.18
17,246,389 1.02
43,099,516 2.53
33,540,056 1.97
747,672,042 44.05
8,040,839 0.47
1,245,803,39%4 73.40
21,200,000 1.25
500,000 0.03
426,000,000 25.10
50,600,000 2.98
498,300,000 29.36




Firstrand Bank 8.060% 24-Jun-20
Firstrand Bank 8.280% 29-Jun-20
Nedbank 8.
Nedbank 7.
Nedbank 7.
Nedbank 7.
Standard Bank of South Africa 8.225% 09-Apr-20

Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Absa Bank
Firstrand
Firstrand
Firstrand
Firstrand
Firstrand
Firstrand

225% 02-Apr-20
850% 03-Aug-20
825% 06-Aug-20
825% 07-Aug-20

FRN 06-Apr-20
FRN 14-Apr-20
FRN 14-Apr-20
FRN 20-May-20
FRN 20-May-20
FRN 15-Jun-20
FRN 16-Jul-20
FRN 14-Aug-20
FRN 04-Sep-20
Bank FRN 08-May-20
Bank FRN 10-Jun-20
Bank FRN 11-Jun-20
Bank FRN 12-Jun-20
Bank FRN 23-Jul-20
Bank FRN 24-Jul-20

Investec Bank FRN 03-Apr-20
Investec Bank FRN 18-Aug-20
Nedbank FRN 14-Apr-20
Nedbank FRN 14-Apr-20
Nedbank FRN 14-Apr-20
Nedbank FRN 20-Apr-20
Nedbank FRN 20-Apr-20
Nedbank FRN 28-Apr-20
Nedbank FRN 21-May-20
Nedbank FRN 25-May-20
Nedbank FRN 12-Jun-20
Nedbank FRN 11-Aug-20

2020
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14,000,000 14,026,294 0.79
28,000,000 28,105,163 1.58
65,000,000 65,002,272 3.64
5,000,000 5,008,914 0.28
2,000,000 2,003,521 0.11
4,000,000 4,006,631 0.22
47,000,000 47,008,320 2.63
165,161,115 9.25

23,000,000 23,000,000 1.29
32,000,000 32,000,000 1.79
18,000,000 18,000,000 1.01
51,000,000 51,000,000 2.86
13,000,000 13,000,000 0.73
23,000,000 23,000,000 1.29
113,000,000 113,200,557 6.34
18,000,000 18,036,452 1.01
64,000,000 64,106,716 3.59
63,000,000 63,028,724 3.53
7,000,000 7,008,033 0.39
18,000,000 18,041,911 1.01
3,000,000 3,003,814 0.17
16,000,000 16,018,608 0.90
6,000,000 6,007,337 0.34
82,000,000 82,004,437 4.60
5,000,000 5,008,069 0.28
5,000,000 5,000,000 0.28
5,000,000 5,000,000 0.28
56,000,000 56,000,000 3.14
20,000,000 20,000,000 1.12
4,000,000 4,000,000 0.22
20,000,000 20,000,000 1.12
13,000,000 13,000,000 0.73
12,000,000 12,000,000 0.67
3,000,000 3,004,876 0.17
65,000,000 65,126,299 3.65
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Nedbank FRN 21-Aug-20 90,000,000 90,160,274 5.05
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 03-Apr-20 5,000,000 5,000,195 0.28
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 28-Apr-20 2,000,000 2,000,732 0.11
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 08-May-20 58,000,000 58,029,406 3.25
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 15-May-20 14,000,000 14,008,223 0.79
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 22-May-20 136,000,000 136,201,495 7.63
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 31-Jul-20 34,000,000 34,067,129 1.91
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 31-Jul-20 102,000,000 102,237,257 5.73
1,200,300,544 67.26

30,356,698 1.70

FVTPL 1,395,818,357 78.21
Nedbank 32 Day Notice 61,000,000 61,000,000 3.41

Shinsei Absa Bank 73,200,000 73,200,000 4.10

Shinsei Citibank 500,000 500,000 0.03

Shinsei HSBC Bank 176,000,000 176,000,000 9.87

Shinsei Investec Bank 52,600,000 52,600,000 2.95

Shinsei Standard Chartered 30,000,000 30,000,000 1.68
393,300,000 22.04
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF

HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Financial Position

Az ot 317 Mareh 2021

2021 2020
Notes TZAR TAR
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 11 590,647,096 394,477,402
Financial assets at fair valug through profit orloss 9,10 1.245,803,394 1,395,818.357
Receivable for Equity Units issued 2,829,812 985,362
Receivables 12 1,827 982 2,267,100
Total assets 1,841,108,284 1.793.548.221
Liabilities
Payalble for Equuty Units redeemed 2,961,077 2,506,250
Pavables 13,15 140,903,345 0,387,020
Total liabilities 143,864,422 8,893,279
Equity
Unit capital 14 1,607,242,451 1, 784,654,097
Retained earnings 1.411 845
Total equity 18 1,697,243,862 1, 784,654,942
Total equity and liabilities 1,841,108,284 1,793,548,221

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statemeants,

Signed on behalf of the Trustee
oS gneed by Detutigred b
(owar (ki Suna Kimpella
CIBEFITORIRAATE SOAFDSCADASCAD0

Date: 15 September 2021
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF

HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the vear ended 317 Mareh 2021

2021 2020

Notes ZAR ZAR
Investment income
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 7 269,620 237.025
Interest income from debt securities at fair value
through profit or loss 7 79,784,175 129,756,362
Interest expense from financial assets not at fair
value through profit or loss (T35.585) (6,843,139
Met gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 419,691 76,692
Total investment income 79,737,501 123,226,940
Expenises
Trustee fees 15,16 (170,000) (170,000)
Administration and custodian fees 15.16 (2,558,120) (2,239,229)
Investment management fees 1516 (BE3,503) (856,872)
Sub-Investment management fees 1516 (7,115,889 (6,889,531
Distributor fees 15 TA25011) (6,901,045)
Agent company fees 15 (1,782,875 (1,725,266)
Legal and printing fees (616.645) (682,005)
Andit fees (595,708) [(523.744)
Megative vield expense 7 (12) (235)
Other fees and expenses (328.242) (136.660)
Total expenses (21,178,071 (20,124,587
Operating profit for the year 58,559,830 103,102,353
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 58,559,830 lﬂéz 102,353

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gaing and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive

[ncome,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the vear ended 317 March 2021

Unit Retained

Capital Earnings Total

LAR LZAR LAR

Balance at 1% April 2020 1,784,654,097 845 1,784,654,942
Total comprehensive income for the vear - 58,550 830 58,550,830

Equity Units issued 568,922,631 - 568,922,631
Equity Units redeemed (656,334,27T) - (656,334,277
Dhstribarions (Maote 17) - (58,559,264) (58,559.264)
Balance at 315 March 2021 1,697,242 451 1,411 1,697,.243,562

Balance at 1 April 2019 1,645,070,806 582 1,645,071,388

Total comprehensive income for the year - 103,102,353 103,102,353

Equity Units 1ssued 620,446,691 - 080,446,691
Equity Units redeemed (540,863,400) z (540,863,400)
Distributions (MNote 17) - (103,102,090 (103,102,000

Balance at 31°° March 2020 1,784,654,097 845 1,784,654,942

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF

HORIZON TRUST

Statement of Cash Flows
For the vear ended 317 Mareh 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Total comprehensive income for the vear

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease in receivables

Increase/(decrease) in payvables

Met cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from Equity Units issued

Increase in receivable for Equity Units issued

Payments for Equity Units redeemed

Increase/{ decrease) in payable for Equaty Units redeemed
Distributions paid

Met cash (used inyprovided by financing activities

Met change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 17 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31* March

Supplementary information:

Interest received on cash and cash equivalents
Interest received from debt securities

Interest paid on cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020

ZAR ZAR
58550830  103,102.353
150,014,963 (15,354,396)
439,118 164,262
134,516,316 (300,535)
343,530,227 87.611.684
522,518,166 598,608,051
(1,844.450) (603,904)
(656,334277)  (540.863,400)
454827 (1.224,028)
{12,154.799)  (21.263.450)
(147,360,533) 34,653,269
196,169,694 122,264,953
304,477,402 272,212,449
590,647,09 394,477,402
266,927 240,281
102,552,506 129825027
(12) (235)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

South African Rand Money Market Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Horizon Trust (the
“Trust™), a Cayman [slands open-endad umbrella mutual fund, and was constituted pursuant to a Master
Trust Deed and a supplemental Trust Deed each dated 17% October 2008 made between the Trustee and
UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited (the “Investment Manager™). Separate series of Units of
the Series Trust will be 1ssued from fime to time. Unless redeemed earlier, each class or senes of Units
of the Series Trust will be compulsorly redeemed 150 vears Fom the issue of the Series Trust's
supplemental Trust Deed for each such class or series of Units. The Senies Trust commenced operations
on 8 December 2008, following the initial subscription day of 3! December 2008

The investment objective of the Series Trust 1s to target retums with reference to the STeFl 3-month
money market index, gross of fees and taxes, measured over one year pericds. The Senes Trust segks to
achieve its investment objective by investing in a range of South African money market instruments,
These assets include, but are not limited to, bankers™ acceptances, debentures, negotiable certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, treasury bills, call accounts, fixed deposits, fixed coupon negotiable
certificates of deposit, variable coupon negotiable certificates of deposit and promissory notes, There
can be no assurances that the Series Trust's investment objective will be achieved.

The Senes Trust registered as a regulated mutual fund under Section 4130 of the Mutual Funds Act of
the Cavman Islands on 17" October 2008 and will comply with the provisions of that law. As at 31%
March 2021 and 2020, the Senes Trust had no employees. The Senies Trust's investment activities are
managed by the Investment Manager,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) issued by the International Accounting Standards Beoard (“IASB™), and
interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee of the [ASE.
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis,

The financial statements are presented in South Afnican Rand (“ZAR™,

“Functional currency™ is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Senies Trust
operates. If indicators of the primary economic environment are mixed. then management uses its
Judgement to determine the functional curreney that most faithfully represents the economic effect of
the underlving transactions, events and conditions. The majority of the Senes Trust's investments and
fransactions are denominated in ZAR. Investor subscriptions and redemptions are determined based on
Met Asset Value (“NAV™), and received and paid in ZAR. The expenses (including trustee fees,
administration and custodian fees, Sub-Investment management fees, distnbutor fees and agent
company fees) are denominated and paid in ZAR. Accordingly, management has determined that the
functional currency of the Seres Trust is ZAR.

The preparation of Bnancial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasomable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about the carrying value of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underl ving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
12
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Continged)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the perlod in which the estimate is revised.
Judgements made by the Trustee in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant sk of material adjustment in the next period are discussed
in Notes 9 and 10.

Changss to significant accounting policies are described in Mote 4.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following material
itemns:

Items Measurement basis
MWon=denvative financial instruments at Gar value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL™) Fair value

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year,
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1* April 2020 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Seres Trust has not early applied these new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements. OF these standards that are not yet effective, none is
expected to have a material impact on the Series Trust’s financial statements in the period of initial
application.

NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New standards, amendments and interpretations issues and effective for the financial year
beginning 1* April 2020

A number of amendments to IFRS are effective for the current financial year, but they do not have a
material effect on the Senes Trust's financial statements,

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust and consistently applied to all vears
presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Senes Trust imitially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the trade date,
which is the date on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which they are
originated. 13
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

MNotes to the Financial Statements
(Continmed)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i) Recognition and initial measurement {eontinued)

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

fii} Classification and subsequent measurement

Classificarion of firancial assels

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
® it i5 held within a business modeal whose objective i3 to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and
s its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash Aows that are solely pavments of principal
and interest (“SPP17),

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL,

Business model assessmeni
In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the
Series Trust considars all of the relevant information about how the business 1s managed, including:

s the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes
whether the investment strategy focuses on earming confractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust’s management;
the risks that affect the perfornmance of the busingss medeal (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

e  how the Investment Manager is compensated: ¢.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected, and

s the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in the prior vear, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust’s continuing recognition of the assets.

The Series Trust has determuned that it has two business models:
s Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, receivable for Equity Units
1ssued and recervables. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows: and
o (ther business model: this includes debt securities and coupon interest receivable. These financial
assets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales
taking place.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

{ii} Classification and subsequent measurement (contimeed)

Assessment whether comtractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal™ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. “Interest”™ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the pnncipal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs {(e.g. liquidity risk and admimstrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPL the Senes Trust considers the contractual
terms of the instnument, This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Seres Trust considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or iming of cash flows;

— leverage features,

— prepayment and extension features,

— terms that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features); and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of meney {e.g. penodical reset of interest rates).

For a reconciliation of line items in the Statement of Financial Position to the categones of financial
instruments, as defined by IFRS 9, see Note 8.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassifiad subsequent to their imtial recogmition unless the Series Trust were to
change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets
would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
maodel,

Subsequent measwrement of financial assets
Financial assets ar FVIPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Met gains and losses, including any interest
income and'or expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in profit or loss in the
Staternent of Comprehensive Income. Debt secunties are included in this category.

Finaneial assefs af amortizsed cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impaimment are recogrised in profit or loss in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or loss on derecogmition is also recognised in profit or
loss, Cash and cash equivalents, receivable for Equity Units issued and receivables are included in this
category.

Financial linbilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

15
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

{ii} Classification and subsequent measurement (contimeed)

Financial linbilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses (contined)

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it
15 designated as such on imtial recogmtion. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recogrised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amertised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition 1s also recognised in profit or loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include pavable for Equity Units redeemed and pavables.

(it} Fair valwe measurement

“Fair value™ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market parficipants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date, The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance nsk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis,
The Series Trust measures instruments guoted in an active market at a mid-pnce, because this price
provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Seres Trust uses valuaion techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs, The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction. The Seres Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting peniod during which the change has occurred,

{tvi Amortised cost measurement

The ‘amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial lability 1s the amount at which the financial asset
or financial hability 15 measured on initial recogmtion minus the prnincipal repayments, plus or minus the
curmulative amorhisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

(v} fmpeairment

The Senes Trust recogmses loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECLs™) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

{v) Impairment {contimed)

The Series Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. except for the
tfollowing, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

s financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
e other financial assets for which credit nisk (1.e. the nsk of default ocenrning over the expected life of
the asset) has not increased significantly sinee initial recognition.

When determinng whether the credit nsk of a financial asset has increased significantly since nitial
recogmition and when estimating ECLs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series Trust's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information,

The Senes Trust assumes that the eredit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly 1f it is more
than 30 davs past due,

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower 1s unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Senes Trust in full, without recourse by
the Series Trust to actions such as realising secunty (if any is held); and'or
s the financial asset is more than 90 davs past due.

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the
counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade™,

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date {or a shorter period if the expected life of the
mstrment is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs 1s the
maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust 1s exposed to credit nsk.

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
valuz of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Series Trust in

accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Senes Trust expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial assat.

Credit-impaived financiol pssers

At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are

credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimantal
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

{v) Impairment {contimed)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probabilityv-weighted estimate of eredit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (ie. the difference between the cash flows due to the Series Trust in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Senes Trust expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the fnancial asset.

Credit-impeived financial assets
At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental

impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is eredit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
* 3 breach of confract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; and'or
* it 1s probable that the borrower will enter banknuptey or other financial recrganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carmang
amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carmving amount of a financial asset is written off when the Series Trust has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof,

{vi} Derecaguition

The Series Trust derecogmses a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carmying amount of the asset (or the
carrving amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the consideration received
{including anv new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Senes Trust is recognised as
a separate asset or liability,

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Statement of
Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the nsks and rewards of the transferred
assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all of the risks and rewards are retained, then the
transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards include sale and repurchase transactions.
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

{vi} Derecognition {contined)

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its confractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrving amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilines
assumed) 15 recogmsed in profit or loss,

{vii) Gffsetting financial instiments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when and only when there is a legally enforceable nght to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneonsly. This 15 generally not the case with master nething agreements and the related assets and
liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of Financial Position. Income and expenses are presented
on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at FVTPL.

As at 31% March 2021 and 2020, the Senes Trust was not subject to a master netting agreement,

Foreign currencies

Items which are included in the Series Trust's financial staternents, are measured using the currency of
the prnmary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™), this is ZAR.
Securities fransactions are recorded in the financial statements on the trade date of the transaction and
translated into ZAR. Where the security is denominated in a curmrency other than ZAR, the transaction is
translated into ZAR, at the exchange rates prevailing at the close of business on the trade date. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into ZAR at the exchange rates
ruling at the vear end date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which
are stated at fair value, are retranslated into ZAR, at the exchange rate at the date the fair value was
determmined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recogmised in profit or loss as net foreign
exchange gain or loss, except for those arising on financial assets at FVTPL, which are recogrised as a
component of net gain on financial assets at FVTPL and are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the vear.

Cash and cash equivalents

GUALS, (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed the Custodian, who in turn, appointed Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH™) as their sub-custodian. Cash is ultimately held at BBH as the Series
Trust’s banker. Cash and cash equuivalents/bank overdraft compnse cash held with/owed to BEH with
mafturities of 3 months or less.

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents is accounted for on an effective interest rate basis, Where
the interest vield is negative the resulting expense is presented as negative vield expense within
expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This expense is accounted for on an effective
vield basis.
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest income from debt securities at fair value

Interest income from debt secunties, ineluding interest income from non-derivative financial assets at
FVTPL, is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash pavments and receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument (or, when appropnate, a shorter period) to the carming amount of the
financial instrument on imtial recogmtion. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Series Trust
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual tenms of the financial instrument, but not fiture
credit losses.

Interest received or receivable, and interest paid or payable, are recogmsed in profit or loss as interest
income and interest expense, respectively,

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accmals basis,

Taxation

Linder the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains or
other Cayman lslands taxes payable by the Trust. The Trust has received an undertaking from the
Governor in Cabinet of the Cavman Islands that in accordance with section 81 of the Trusts Law (2020
Revision) it will be exempt from such taxes for a period of fifty vears from 2008 should they be enacted.
As a result, no provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements, The Series Trust may be
subject to foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains.

In determining the provision for taxes pavable on income, the Series Trust provides for uncertain tax
positions that are more likely than not to create a tax obligation assuming inspection by the relevant tax
authenties. The amount provided is either the mest likely amount payable or the expected value of the
payable amount, whichever approach provides a better prediction in the specific circumstances.

Distribution policy

The Trustee, on the advice of the Inwestment Manager, may declare distributions in respect of the Series
Trust on each dealing day. Distributions shall only be declared when the NAV per Unit exceeds ZAR
0.01 (the “threshold amount™) on such dealing day. The amount available for distribution shall be
determined by the Administrator on each dealing day by caleulating the NAV per Unit. The amount per
Unat to be distnbuted from the Senes Trust shall be such sum as may be requored to reduce the NAV per
Unit on the relevant dzaling day to an amount equal to the threshold amount, The distnbutions shall be
deemed to have been declared immediately prior to the close of business in the last relevant market to
close on each dealing day, or such other time on such day or days as the Investment Manager, after
corsultation with the Trustee, may from time to time determine.

The amount to be distnbuted per Unit shall be calculated and rounded to 8 decimal places; the aggregate
amount paid to Unitholders will be rounded to the nearest ZARGO1, All rounding adjustments will
ageruz to the Series Trust, Every Unitholder in the Series Trust shall have the right to participate in such
amount of the distribution available to the Series Trust pro rata to the number of Units held by such
Unitholder,
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Distribution policy (continued)

Distrnibutions will acerue daily with effect from the date on which subscrption monies are received from
the investor, therefore Unitholders will be entitled to the distribution declared on the settlement date, On
the distribution reinvestment date all distributions declared, acerued and not vet paid up to and including
the distribution reinvestment date (after deduction of withholding and other taxes required to be paid (if
any) in the country i which the Unitholder resides), are automatically reinvested against the 1ssue of
further Units at the NAY per Umit determined on the distribution reinvestment date. Settlement of the
subscnption momes due on the reinvestment will be effected on the following dealing day. No
preliminary charge shall be pavable on the re-investment of distnibutions. Mo fractional Units will be
issued,

Unitholders requesting the repurchase of Units on or prior to the distribution reinvestment date will be
paid their distnbutions relating to those Units to be repurchased which have been declared up to and
including the dealing day on which the Units are repurchased, in cash together with the repurchase
proceeds, Unitholders requesting the repurchase of Units on the last dealing day of a month shall have
their Units {including a portion of the Units issued on the preceding distnbution reinvestment date out of
distnbutions relating to the Units repurchased at the request of a Unitholder) repurchased and the
repurchase proceeds shall be paid together with the distnbutions declared on the relevant dealing day.

Distnbutions payable are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity when declared.

Equity Units

The Series Trust issues Equity Units, which are redeemable at each Umitholder’s option and are
classified as equity in accordance with LAS 32 Financial Instruments - Presentation (“LAS 327). Should
the Equity Units” terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the striet eriteria
contained in IAS 32, the Equity Units would be reclassified to a financial lability from the date the
instrnimment ceases to meet the erteria. The financial hability would be measured at the instrument’s fair
value at the date of reclassification. Equuty Units can be put back to the Series Trust for cash equal to a
proportionate share of the Series Trust's trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Senes Trust’s
Appendix to the Trust’s Offenng Memorandum,

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual obligation for the Senes Trust to repurchase
or redeem that instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as equity if it meets all of the
conditions below;
= it enfitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Senies Trust’s Net Assets in the event of the Series
Trust’s hquidation;
= it 15 1n the class of instuments that 15 subordinate to all other classes of instmuments;
= all financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features;
= apart from the contractual obligation for the Senes Trust to repurchase or redeem the mstnument
for cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would
require classification as a liability, and
= the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on
the profit or loss, the change in the recognised Net Assets or the change in the fair value of the
recognised and unrecognised Met Assets of the Series Trust over the life of the instrument.
21
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Equity Units (continued)

The Series Trust’s one class of Units in issue meet these conditions and are classified as equity.

As at 317 March 2021, the Series Trust had ZAR1,697.243.862 (2020: ZAR1,784,654,942) of Net Assets

120/258

classified as equity.
8. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial assets Financial
Mandatorily at amortised liabilities at
at FVTPL cost  amortised cost Total
2021 ZAR LAR ZAR LAR
Cash and cash equuvalents - 500,647,096 - 590,647 0946
Financial assets at FVTPL 1.245,803,394 - - 1,245,803,394
Regeivable for Equity Units
issued - 2820812 - 2820812
Recaivables - 1,827,982 - 1,827,982
1,245,803,394 595,304,590 i 1,841,108,284
Payable for Equity Units
redecmed - - 2.961.077 2,961,077
Payables - - 140 903.345 140.903.345
- - 143,864,422 143,864,422
2020
Cash and cash equivalents - 394,477,402 - 394,477 402
Financial assets at FVTPL 1,395,818,357 - - 1,395818,357
Receivable for Equity Units
1ssned - QRS 362 - OR5,362
Receivables - 2,267,100 - 2267100
1,395,818,357 397,729,564 - 1,793,548,221
Payable for Equity Units
redeamed - - 2,506,250 2,506,250
Pavables - - 6,387,029 6,387,029
- - 8,893,279 8893279
22
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The main nisks arising from the Series Trust's financial instruments can be summansed as follows:

Market Risk

Market risk anses from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It represents the
potential loss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions i the face of price
movements, Market nsk compnses three tvpes of nsk: price nsk, currency risk and interest rate nsk,

Price risk is the risk that value of the related instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in the
market prices {other than those ansing from currency nisk or interest rate risk), whether caused by
factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instnmments in the
market. Price risk is managed by the Investment Manager comstructing a diversified portfolio of
mnstruments in terms of duration, credit risk and product.

As at 317 March 2021, if the price of each investment had increased by 3% (2020: 5%) with all other
variables held constant, there would have been an increase in total equity of ZAR62,290,170 (3.67% of
MAV) (2020: ZARGO.TOOOIR (3.91% of NAV)). A decrease by 5% with all other variables held
constant, would result in an equal but opposite effect on total equity to the figures shown above. 1t is
important to note that this form of sensitivity analysis may be unrepresentative of the risks inherent in
the financial instruments held by the Series Trust from time to time as the measure is a point-in-time
calculation, reflecting positions as recorded at that date, wlich do not necessanly reflect the nsk
position held at any other time.

During the year, a viral Covid-19 pandemic has contimied to spread across the globe. It 1s causing very
significant financial market, economic and social dislocation globally, including very significant
disruption to business and economic activity. The economic disruption may significantly reduce the
value of many financial instnuments including those held by the Series Trust, The ultimate extent of the
effect of this on the Series Trust is not possible to estimate at this time and will only be finally
determined on realisation of investments,

Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that as certain assets of the Series Trust may be invested in securities and other

investments denominated in foreign currencies, the value of such assets may be affected favourably or
unfavowrably by fluctuations in currency rates.

Since all of the investments and cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the base currency of the
Series Trust, the Statermnent of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be
significantly affected by cwrency movements and as a result, a sensitivity analysis has not been
performed.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest mate nsk represents the potential loss that the Senies Trust might suffer due to adverse

movements in relevant interest rates. The value of fixed income assets may change based on interest
rate fluctuations,
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Rizk (continued)

Interast

ate Risk (continuad

Typically, when interest rates ingrease, the value of fixed income assets tends to depreciate. Conversely,
when interest rates decrease, the value of fixed imcome assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of
the value of the fixed income asset will depend on a mmmber of factors, including the maturity and conditions
of issuance of the fixed income asset. Inferest rate fluctuations may also affect the value and pricing of
derivative instruments that are purchased by the Investment Manager for the account of the Series Trust.

The table below summarises the Series Trust’s exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Senes Trust's
assets and trading liabilities at fair values, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity
dates as at 31% March 2021

Fixed

Less than 1-3 4-12 interest Non-interest
2021 1 month months months rate Bearing Total
Assels LAR LAR LAR FAR LAR FAR
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 500647096 - 500647096
Financial
assels at
FVTPL 520,901,403 456,637,365 260,223 787 - 8,040,839  1,245,803,3594
Receivable for
Equity Unats -
issuzd - - - 2,820.812 2820812
Receivables - - - - 1,827,982 1,827,982
Total assets 520,901,403 456,637,365 260,223,787 590,647,0% 12,698,633  1,541,108,284
Liahilities
Pavable for
Ecuity Units - -
redeemed - - 2,961,077 2.961.077
Pavables - - - - 140,903,345 140.903.345
Total liabilities - - - - 143,564,422 143,564,422
Total Interest
Sensitivity Gap 520,901,403 456,637,365 260,223,787 MNIA NIA NI/A
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Rizk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk (continuead

The table below summarises the Series Trust’s exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Senes Trust's
assets and trading liabilities at fair values, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or matunty
dates as at 31% March 2021;

Fixed Non-

Less than 1-3 4-12 interest interest
2020 1 month months months rate  Bearing Total
Assels
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 394477402 - 394477402
Financial assets at
FVTPL 384,015,955 450,457,939 524987765 - 30,356,098 1,395818.357
Receivable for
Equity Units issued - - - - 985,302 Q85,3062
Recervables - - - - 2267100 2267100
Total assets 384,015,955 456,457,939 524,987,765 394,477,402 33,609,160 1,793,548,221
Liahilities
Pavable for Equity
Unats redeemed - - - = 2506250 2,506,250
Payables - - - - 6387029 6,387,029
Total liabilities - - - - 8893279 8,593,279
Total Interest
Sensitivity Gap 384,015,955 456,457,939 524,987,765 MNIA NIA NIA

Based on the financial instruments held at 317 March 2021, if the floating interest rate curve increased by
0.5% for a full year then the effect on total equuty, with all other vanables remaiming constant, would amount
toa gain of ZAR2 450,453 (2020: ZARG,802.248). A decrease by 0.5% would result in an equal but opposite
effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

The Benchmark rate for interest receipts for the floating rate investments is based on the 3 month
lohannesburg Interbank Agreed Rate (“JiBar™) for the Series Trust,

It is important to note that this form of sensitivity analysis may be unrepresentative of the risks inherent in

the financial instnoments held by the Series Trust as the measure is a point-in-time calculation, reflecting
positions as recorded at that date, which do not necessanly reflect the risk position held at any other time.

Liquidity Risk
Licpucity nisk is the risk that the Series Trust may not be able to rapidly adjust the size of its investment
position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price,
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

Funds are invested in assets which are expected to be readily realisable and ovemight cash balances of
around 5% of the net value of equity are normally retainad, which are increased for known outflows and
during market distuption. In times of market disnuption realising assets may become more difficult,
When this is observed it is monitored by the Investmant Manager, and where deemed necessary by the
Investment Manager, the Investment Manager will endeavour to have shorter maturity dates and to
increase overnight cash. Please see Note 14 for details of redemption terms and conditions for
Unitholders.

In the opinion of the Investment Manger, the majority of assets and liabilities of the Series Trust held as
at 317 March 2021 and 2020 can be liquidated within one month in normal circumstances. All liabilities
of the Series Trust, and the total equity of the Series Trust which is all redecmable at the option of
Unitholders, have a contractual maturity of less than one month.

Credit Risk

Credit nsk is measured by the loss the Series Trust would record if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust. The Series Trust will be exposed to eredit
risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of setflement default. The Senes Trust
aims to select only established counterparties that have sufficient experience, knowledge and
creditworthiness, All transactions in listed secunties are setfled/paid for upon delivery using approved
brokers. The nsk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the
broker has received paviment. Pavment 15 made on a purchase once the secunties have been received by
the broker. All of the cash held on overnight deposit is held with a carefully selected list of banks.
Bankruptey or insolvency by a bank may cause the Senes Trust’s nghts with respect to the cash held on
deposit to be delayed or limited The Investment Manager monitors the credit rating of this list, as
reported by S&P Global and Moody's,

G.AS, (Cayman) Limited as Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited {London
Branch) as its custodian (the “Custodian™), which has a Fitch long tenm rating of A-, Sumitomo Mitsui
Trst Bank, Limited { London Branch) has, in turn, appointed BBH, as their sub-custodian. Both the cash
and securities are ultimately held with/owed to BBH, with cash being held with/owed to BBH as banker,
All of the investments and cash of the Series Trust are held by/owed to BBH at vear end, who has a
Fitch credit rating of A+,

Bankruptey or insolvency of BEH may cause the Series Trust’s rights with respect to its investments in
debt securities held by the bank to be delaved or limited. The Series Trust’s secunties are maintained by
the Custodian in segregated accounts at BEBH, thus in the event of insolvency or bankrptey of the
Custodian or BBH, the Series Trust’s securities are segregated. The Series Trust will, however, be
exposed to the credit nsk of BBH, or any depository used by the Custodian or BEH, in relation to the
Series Trust’s cash. In the event of the insolvency or bankruptey of BEH or a depository, the Series
Trust will be treated as a general ereditor of BEH or a depository in relation to cash holdings of the
Series Trust. An investment universe which lists all the rating eligible secunties that the Series Trust has
traded in is maintained, and monitored dailv by the Investment Manager to record rating changes by
Fitch (national rating scale). Any rating changes are reported to the Investment Manager.
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

The table below shows the distnbution of fixed deposits and instruments at FVTPL by credit rating as a
percentage of the value of investments, The credit rating is determined by the [nvestment Manager, on
an mstrument by mstrument basis, based on reference to four credit rating agencies, being Fitch, S&P
Global, Moody’s, and GDC in this sequence,

2021 ZAR Y 2020 LZAR Yo
AAA 1,174,172,042 6731  AAA 334,750,667 18.71
Ad+ 240,140,210 1377  AA+ 439.670,459 24.57
AA 320,791,142 1891  AA 1.014.697.231 56.72

1,744,103,394 100.0:0 1,789,118,357 T 00

All gains and losses from trading in investments for the vears ended 317 March 2021 and 2020 are
included in profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Amovnts arising from ECL

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, receivable for Equity Units issued and receivables has been
measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short matunties of the exposures. The
Series Trust considers that these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of
the counterparties.

The Senes Trust monitors changes in credit risk on these exposwres by tracking published extemal
credit rafings of the counterparties, To determine whether published ratings remain up to date and to
assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date that has not been
reflected in the published ratings. the Series Trust supplements this by reviewing changes in bond
yields, credit default swap prices together with available press and repulatory information about
counterparties.

12-month and lifetime probabilities of default are based on publically available histoncal market data
published by Moody's for each credit rating, Loss given default parameters generally reflect an assumed
recovery rate of 50%. However, if the asset were credit-impaired, then the estimate of loss would be
based on a specific assessment of expected cash shortfalls and on the onginal effective interest rate.

On initial application of IFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018, the Series Tnust recognised an impairment
allowance of a tivial amount on cash and cash equivalents and receivables. The amount of the loss
allowance did not change dunng the vears ended 31% March 2021 or 2020,
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

MNotes to the Financial Statements
(Continged)

1. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those whose fair

value is based on:

s Level |: Quoted price {Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

e Level 2! Valuation techmgues based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instnuments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar
instnuments in markets that are not considered active; or other valuation techmigues for which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data; and

s Level 3: Valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments for which the valuation technigque includes inputs not based on observable data and
the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category
includes instnoments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between

the instruments. The Senes Trust did not hold any instruments in this category.

2021

Financial assets at FVTPL
(including interest receivable)
Certificates of Deposit

Coupon Interest Receivable on
Variable Rate NCDs
Discounted Debt

Variable Rate NCDs

2020

Financial assets at FVTPL
{including interest receivahle)
Certificates of Deposit

Coupon Interest Receivable on
Variable Rate NCDs

Vanable Rate NCDs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR
- TT.038.225 = 77,038,225

- 8.040.839 - 8,040,839
747,672,042 747,672,042

- 413,052,288 - 413,052,288

- 1,245,803,394 - 1,245,803,394

- 165.161.115 - 165,161,115

- 30,356,698 - 30,356,698

- 1.200,300,544 - 1,200,300 544

- 1,395,5818,357 - 1,395,818,357
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

MNotes to the Financial Statements
(Continged)

1. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

There were no transfers between the levels during the year (2020: Mone).

11.

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL are short-term financial assets and financial liabilities
whose carrving amounts approximate fair value.

The table below sets out the fair values of financial instnoments not measured at FVTPL and analyses
them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measwrement 1s categorised:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2021 LFAR ZAR LAR LFAR
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 500,647,000 - - 500,647,006
Receivable for Equity Units 1ssued - 2,820R12 - 2820812
Receivables - 1,827 982 - 1,827 982
SH,64 7,006 4,657,794 - 595,304,890
Liahilities
Pavable for Equity Units redeemed - 2,961,077 = 2,961,077
Payables - 140,903,345 . 140,903,345
- 143,864,422 - 143,864,422
2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 394 477,402 - - 394,477,402
Fecervable for Equuty Units 1ssued - 985362 - 085,362
Receivables - 2,267,100 - 2,267,100
394,477,402 3,252,462 - 397,729,864
Liahbilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 2,506,250 - 2,506,250
Pavables - 6,387,029 - 6,387,029
- 8,893,279 = 8.393,279

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and eash equivalents, comprises cash held with maturities of 3 months or less with BBH of the

amount ZAR92.347.006 (2020

ZAR393,300,000).
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

MNotes to the Financial Statements

(Continted)
12. RECEIVAELES
2021 2020
ZAR LZAR
Bank interest receivable B,624 5,930
Deposits (less than 3 months) receivable 1 B0E, 608 2261170
Other receivables 10,750 -
1,827,982 2,267,100
13. PAYABLES
2021 2020
Mote LAR LAR
Payable for investments purchased 134,818,574 -
Fees payable 15 5,964,257 6,103,027
Distributions payable 120,514 284.002
140,903, 45 6,387,029
14. EQUITY UNIT CAFPITAL
Number of Units Unit Capital
ZAR
Balance at 1* Apnl 2020 178.465,409,571 1, 784,654,007
Equity Units 1ssued 56.892.263.113 568,922,631
E quity Units redeemed (65633427714 (656.334.277)
Balance at 31** March 2021 169,724,244,970 1,697,242.451
Balance at 1* April 2019 164,507,080,500 1,645,070,806
Equaty Units 1ssued 08,044.669.115 080,446,691
Ecpuity Units redeemed (54,086,340,044) {540.863.400)
Balance at 31* March 2020 178,465,409,571 1,784,654,007

Only one class of Units, ZAR Units, are in issue, The Units are available for subscription on any dealing
day at the applicable purchase prnice. The Senes Trust 1ssues redeemable Umits, which are redeemable at
each Unitholder’s option but are classified as financial equity in accordance with [AS 32, Redeemable
Units can be put back to the Series Trust at every dealing day for cash equal to a proportionate Unit of
the Series Trust's NAW. The redeemable unit is carried at the redemption amount that 1s payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date if a Unitholder exercises the right to put the Unit back to the Senies
Trust,

Equity Units are redeemable daily subject to the submission of a repurchase notice by no later than 8am
{Dublin time) on the relevant dealing dav or such other deadline as the Investment Manager may

determine, failing which the repurchase request will be held over until the following dealing day and
Units will be redesimed at the repurchase price applicable for that dealing day.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

MNotes to the Financial Statements
(Continged)

14. EQUITY UNIT CAPITAL (continued)

The Series Trust considers Unit Capital to be the capital of the Series Trust. Its objective in managing
capital is the investment objective described in Note 1. The Series Trust is not subject to any imposed
external regulatory capital requirements. Rakuten Securities, Inc. owns 21% (2020: 21%) and SBI
Securities Co. Ltd owns 63% (2020: 65%) of the Units issued by the Series Trust.

15. FEES AND EXPENSES

Trustee fees
The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fixed fee of ZAR1T0,000 per annum,

accrnung daily and payable quarterly in arrears.

The Trustee also receives an account opening fee of ZAR14,000 for external cash accounts out of the
assets of the Series Trust, In addition, the Trustee i1s entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the
Series Trust for all government or similar fees, charges, taxes and duties levied on or in respect of the
Series Trust as may be properly incurred, as well as all reasonable cut-of-pocket expenses incurred. The
Trustee is also entitled to receive a termination fee upon the termination of the Series Trust as agreed
between the Trustee and the Investment Manager,

Administration and custodian fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust an administration fee at the rate of

1. 0.10% per anmum of that part of the NAV calculated on the valuation point on each valuation day
which is equal to or less than ZARL, 000,000,000,

2. 0.09% per ammum of that part of the NAV calculated on the valuation point on each valuation day
which is greater than ZAR1,000,000,000 and equal to or less than ZAR2,000,000,000;

3. 0.08% per ammum of that part of the NAY calculated on the valuation point on each valuation day
which is greater than ZAR2.000,000,000.

Subject to a mummum fee of ZART00,000 per annum, prorated on each valuation day, and payable
quarterly in arrears in respeet of its provision of administrative services to the Series Trust. The fees of
the Custodian are bome by the Admimstrator,

The Administrator also receives a fee of ZARI150 for each securnity settlement instruction in respect of
the Senes Trust and ZAR100 for cash movements in and out of the Senes Trust. The Admumstrator 15
also enfitled to recerve additonal fees out of the assets of the Series Trust from time to tume as set out 1n
the Administration Agreement in circumstances including, but not limited to;, amendments to the
Offering Memorandum, change of service providers to the Series Trust, changes to the structure of the
Series Trust and termination of the Series Trust,

Investment management fees

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of up to 0.05% per annum of
the NAY, accnuing daily and payable quarterly in arrears, The Investment Manager is also entifled to be
reimbursed out of the assets of the Senes Trust for out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred in
comnection with the services provided by the Investment Manager.
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

MNotes to the Financial Statements
(Continted)

15. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

16.

Sub-Investment management fees

The Sub-Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of up to 0.40% per
anmum of the NAV, aceruing daily and payable quarterly in arrears. The Sub-Investment Manager is
also enfitled to be reimbursad out of the assets of the Series Trust for out-of-pocket expenses reasonably
incurred in connection with the services provided by the Sub-Investment Manager,

Distributor fees

The Distnbutor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of up to 0.40% per annum of that part
of the NAV attributable to Units for which that Distributor procured subscribers, accnuing daily and
payable quarterly in arrears,

Agpgent company fees
The Agent company receives out of the assets of the Series Tnust a fee of up to 0.10% per annum of the
MNAV, accruing daily and payvable quarterly in arrears.

Other fees and expenses

Additional fees and expenses attributable to the Series Trust are also pavable out of the assets of the
Series Trust, including, without limitation, audit fees, legal expenses, consultancy fees, transaction fees,
advertising expenses. printing expenses and any other ongoing out of pocket fees and expenses. The
Series Trust bears any applicable taxes.

The fees pavable are as follows:

2021 2020

TAR FAR
Trustee fees 41 994 42 380
Administration and custodhan fees RBR BAS 512,626
Investment management fees 213,509 220,805
Sub-Investment management fees 1,707,935 1,774,829
Distributor fees 1,707,846 1,777,681
Agent company fees 426,967 444,349
Other fees and expenses 977,141 1,330,357

5,964,257 6,103,027

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions, The Trustee,
Administrator and Custodian are all related by virtue of common control. The Trustee, Investment
Manager, Sub-Investment Manager, Custodian and related companies are deemed to be related to the
Series Trust. Fees incumred with related parties during the wvear are disclosed in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income and Mote 15, Amounts payable to related parties at the year end are disclosed in
Mote 15.

L]
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

MNotes to the Financial Statements
(Continged)

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Rakuten Securities, Inc. owns 21% {2020: 21%) and SBI Securities Co. Litd owns 65% (2020: 65%) of
the Units issued by the Series Trust. There were no transactions with related parties other than those in

the normal course of business. As at 315 March 2021 and 2020, the Series Trust has no employees.

17. DISTRIBUTIONS
The dividend declared to Unitholders for the year ended 317 March 2021 1s ZARSE 559,264 (2020
ZAR103,102,090). Dividends reinvested for the vyear ended 31% March 2021 amounted to
ZAR46,404,465 (2020: ZARS1,838,640).

18. NAV HISTORY

2021 2020
MAV per financial statements ZAR1697243.862  ZARLTR4.654.942
Mumber of Equity Units in issue per financial statements 169,724,244,970 178,465,409,571
MNAV per Equity Unit per financial statements ZARD.O ZARD.0

19. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND CHARGES
There were no other contingencies, commitments or charges as at 317 March 2021 or 2020.
20. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR END

Subsequent to the vear end and up to 15" September 2021, there were ZAR302,703.945 subscriptions
into the Series Trust and ZAR360,067, 766 redemptions from the Series Trust,

As at the date the financial statements were available to be issued, uncertainty still remains around the
length of the disruption of Covid-19 and the impact on global markets,

There were no other events subsequent to the yvear end which require disclosure or amendment to the
financial statements.

21. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Trustee approved the financial statements on 15" September 2021,
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Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 377 March 2021

Fair

MNominal Value % of
Certificates of Deposit Holding LAR NAVY
South Africa
Medbank 7.125% 01-Apr-21 45,000 000 45,000,000 204
Medbank 5.225% 05-May-21 1000 00D 1.001.268 (.00
MNedbank 5.3% 11-May-21 12,000 000 12015969 071
Medbank 4.4% 15-Jul-21 14,000,000 14,015,746 0.83
Standard Bank of South Africa 6.4% 07-Apr-21 2,000,000 2,000,934 012
Standard Bank of South Africa 5.125% 12-May-21 3,000,000 3,004,308 018
Total Certificates of Deposit TT0138,225 4.54
Variable Rate NCDs
South Africa
Absa Bank FEN 0s-Apr-21 23,000,000 23,000,000 1.35
Absa Bank FRN 09-Apr-21 2,000,000 2,000,464 0.12
Absa Bank FEN 12-Apr-21 32,000,000 32,000,000 1.89
Absa Bank FEN 12-Apr-21 23 000 000 23,000,000 1.35
Absa Bank FRN 15-Apr-21 52 000,000 52026099 307
Absa Bank FRN 20-May-21 51,000,000 51,000,000 3.00
Absa Bank FRN 20-May-21 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.77
Absa Bank FRN 15-Jun-21 23,000 000 23000000 1.35
Firstrand Bank FRN 04-Jun-21 1,000,000 1,001,963 .06
Investec Bank FRN 12-Apnl-21 23,000,000 23,007,968 1.36
Investec Bank FEN 07-May-21 14,000,000 14.015,794 0.83
Medbank FRN 12-Apr-21 56,000,000 56,000,000 3.30
Nedbank FRN 12-Apr-21 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.29
Medbank FEN 14-Apr-21 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.29
Medbank FEN 19-Apr-21 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.29
Medbank FEM 19-Apr-21 20,000.000 20,000,000 1.18
Medbank FREMN 26-Apr-21 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.18
Nedbank FRN 21-May-21 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.77
Medbank FRM 24-May-21 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.71
Medbank FRN 10-Jun-21 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.18
Total Variable Rate NCDs 413,052,288 4.4
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Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
Az at 317 March 2021

(Contined)
Fair

Nomin:al Value % of
Discounted Debt Holding LAR NAV
South Africa
South Afnican T-Ball (%6 07-Apr-21 43,870,000 43,841,003 258
South African T-Bill (% 14-Apr-21 103, 770,000 103,627 622 6.1l
South African T-Bill (%6 21-Apr-21 41,710,000 41,627,287 2.45
South African T-Bill (%6 28-Apr-21 18,820,000 18,770,028 1.11
South Afican T-Bill (%0 05-May-21 117,400,000 116,989,344 0.8
South African T-Bill 0% 12-May-21 34,950,000 34,803,794 2.05
South African T-Bill (%% 19-May-21 37,420,000 37,235,987 2.19
South African T-Ball (%% 26-May-21 35,400,000 35,197 547 207
South African T-Bill (%% 02-Jun-21 16,000,000 15,8592 496 0.94
South African T-Bill 0% 23-Jun-21 27,000,000 26,752,135 1.58
South African T-Bill (% 30-Jun-21 27,000,000 26,726,758 1.57
South Afriean T-Bill (%6 14-Jul-21 25,980,000 25679823 1.51
South African T-Bill (% 21-Jul-21 17,350,000 17,136,809 1.01
South African T-Bill 0% 28-Jul-21 17,000,000 16,780,766 0.99
South African T-Bill (%6 04-Aung-21 18,000,000 17.747.647 1.05
South Afriean T-Bill (%% 11-Aug-21 17,900,000 17.628.416 1.04
South African T-Bill (%% 18-Aug-2] 17,000,000 16,724,173 0,90
South African T-Ball (%6 25-Aug-21 21,000,000 20,638,781 1.22
South African T-Bill (% 01-Sep-21 20,300 000 19 985,605 1.18
South African T-Bill (%6 08-Sep-21 17,590,000 17,246,389 1.02
South African T-Bill %% 15-Sep-21 43,780,000 43,099 516 2.53
South Afican T-Bill 0% 22-Sep-21 34050000 33,540,056 1.97
Taotal Discounted Debt 47,672,042 44.05
Coupon interest receivable 8,040,839 0.47
Financial assets at FVTPL 1,245,803,394 T3.40

133/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 317 March 2021

(Contined!
Fair

™ominal Value % of
Deposits (less than 3 months) Holding ZAR NAV
South Africa
Call Account Shinsel Absa Bank 21,200,000 21,200,000 1.25
Call Account Shinsei Citibank S{R0, 0060 500,000 0.03
Call Account Shinsei HSBC Bank: 426,000,000 420, 000,000 25.10
Call Account Shinsel Investee Bank 50,600,000 50.600.000 298
Total Deposits (less than 3 months) 498, 300,000 29.36
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 377 March 2020

Fair

MNominal Value % of
Certificates of Deposit Holding LAR NAVY
South Africa
Firstrand Bank 8.060% 24-Jun-20 14,000 000 14,026,294 0.79
Firstrand Bank 8.280% 29-Jun-20 28,000 000 28105163 1.58
MNedbank 8.225% 02-Apr-20 6.5 000 000 65002272 ENE)
Medbank 7.850% 03- Aug-20 5,000,000 5008914 0.28
Medbank 7.825% 0o0-Aug-20 2,000,000 2.003,521 011
Medbank 7.825% 07-Ang-20 4,000,000 4,006,631 0.22
Standard Bank of South Africa 8.225% 09-Apr-20 A7 000 000 47008320 263
Total Certificates of Deposit 165,161,115 9.25
Variable Rate NCDs
South Africa
Absa Bank FRN 06-Apr-20 23,000,000 23,000,000 1.29
Absa Bank FEN 14-Apr-20 32,000,000 32,000,000 1.79
Absa Bank FEN 14-Apr-20 18,000 000 18,000,000 1.01
Absa Bank FRN 20-May-20 51,000,000 51,000,000 2586
Absa Bank FRN 20-May-20 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.73
Absa Bank FRN 15-Jun-20 23,000,000 23,000,000 1.29
Absa Bank FEN 16-Jul-20 113,000,000 113,200,557 6.34
Absa Bank FEN 14-Aug-20 18,000,000 18,036,452 1.01
Absa Bank FRN 04-Sgp-20 04,000,000 64,106,716 3,59
Firstrand Bank FRN 08-May-20 63,000 000 63,028,724 353
Firstrand Bank FRMN 10-Jun-20 7,000,000 7,008,033 0,39
Firstrand Bank FRN 11-Jun-20 18,000 (00 18,041 911 1.01
Firstrand Bank FEM 12-Tun-20 3,000,000 3,003,814 0.17
Firstrand Bank FRN 23-Jul-20 16,0:00_ 000 16,018,608 0.90
Firstrand Bank FRN 24-Jul-20 6,000,000 6,007.337 0.34
Investec Bank FRN 03-Apr-20 82,000,000 82,004,437 4.60
Investee Bank FRN 18-Aug-20 5,000,000 5,008,060 0.28
Medbank FRM 14-Apr-20 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.28
Medbank FEN 14-Apr-20 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.28
MNedbank FRN 14-Apr-20 56 000 000 56,000,000 3l4
Medbank FEN 20-Apr-20 200,000, 000 20,000,000 1.12
Medbank FRN 20-Apr-20 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.22
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SOUTH AFRICAN RAND MONEY MARKET FUND, A SERIES TRUST OF
HORIZON TRUST

Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 317 March 2020

(Contined)
Fair

Mominal Value % of

Holding ZAR NAV
Variable Rate NCDs (continued)
South Africa (continued)
MNedbank FRN 28-Apr-20 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.12
Wedbank FEN 21-May-20 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.73
Medbank FRN 235-May-20 12,000,000 12,000,000 067
MWedbank FEM 12-Jun-20 3,000,000 3,004,870 017
Medbank FEN 11-Aug-20 035,000,000 65,126,299 3.05
Wedbank FRNM 21-Aug-20 90,000,000 00,160,274 5.05
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 03-Apr-20 5,000,000 5,000,195 (.28
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 28-Apr-20 2,000,000 2,000,732 011
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 08-May-20 58,000,000 58,029,406 3.25
Standard Bank of South Africa FEN 15-May-20 14,000,000 14008223 0.79
Standard Bank of South Africa FRN 22-May-20 136,000,000 136,201 495 T.63
Standard Bank of South Africa FEN 31-Jul-20 34,000,000 34,067,129 1.91
Standard Bank of South Africa FREN 31-Jul-20 102,000,000 102,237 257 573
Total Variable Rate NCDs 1, 200,300,544 67.26
Coupon interest receivable 30,356,698 1.70
Financial assets at FVTPL 1,395,818,357 7821
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Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)
As at 317 March 2020

(Contined!
Fair

™ominal Value % of
Deposits (less than 3 months) Holding ZAR NAV
South Africa
Call Account Nedbank 32 Day Notice 61,000,000 61,000,000 341
Call Account Shinsel Absa Bank 73,200,000 73,200,000 4.10
Call Account Shinsel Citibank 500,000 500,000 0.03
Call Account Shinsei HSBC Bank 176,000,000 176,000,000 987
Call Aceount Shinsel Investee Bank 52 600 000 52,600,000 295
Call Account Shinsel Standard Chartered 30,000,000 30,000,000 1.68
Total Deposits (less than 3 months) 393,300,000 22.04
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2021
d e
a 1,654,032,287.16 12,421,782
b 4,126,204.43 30,988
o 1,649,906,082.73 12,390,795
164,990,525,473
0.01 0.0751
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600 8,522 2021
808,700 600
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2021
uTl
Praveen Jagwani
Mark Tennant
Tan Woon Hum
. uTl
Imtaiyazur Rahman
Fatima Khellafi
22
2021
21 3,685
2,339 6,371
8,873
UCITS
1,082 5,605
2,409
26 3,761
2021 30 UFJ 109.49
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131

23 103

2021 30
80.87
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uTl
2021 31
2021 2020
( (
) ) )  C )

154,431 12,489 24,960 2,019
6,211,922 502,358 4,675,812 378,133
16 188,775 15,266 165,473 13,382
6,555,128 530,113 4,866,245 393,533
14 3,960,247 320,265 3,086,835 249,632
9 428,401 34,645 545,995 44,155
10 7,235,136 585,105 6,245,307 505,058
11,623,784 940,015 9,878,137 798,845
11 3,519,130 284,592 2,858,139 231,138
14 735,813 59,505 376,019 30,409
14 355,916 28,783 175,097 14,160

12 126,312 10,215
114,590 9,267 34,935 2,825
4,851,761 392,362 3,444,190 278,532
6,772,023 547,654 6,433,947 520,313
13,327,151 1,077,767 11,300,192 913,847
13 6,000,000 485,220 6,000,000 485,220
7,139,700 577,388 5,300,192 428,627

187,451 15,159
13,327,151 1,077,767 11,300,192 913,847
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uTI
2021 31
2021 2020
( (
) « ) ) C )
3 11,864,328 959,468 10,409,686 841,831
1,706,781 138,027 (906,238)  (73,287)

315,917 25,548

13,887,026 1,123,044 9,503,448 768,544
4 4,379,898 354,202 3,880,374 313,806
138,262 11,181 11,477 928

5 7,455,616 602,936 6,456,313 522,122
11,973,776 968,319 10,348,164 836,856
1,913,250 154,725 (844,716)  (68,312)

6 (73,742)  (5,964) (70,030)  (5,663)

1,839,508 148,761 (914,746)  (73,976)
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2021 2020
( (
) (D) ) (D)
13 6,000,000 485,220 6,000,000 485,220
5,300,192 428,627 6,214,938 502,602
1,839,508 148,761 (914,746)  (73,976)
7,139,700 577,388 5,300,192 428,627

187,451 15,159

13,327,151 1,077,767 11,300,192 913,847
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31
2021 2020
(
) C ) ) C )

1,913,250 154,725 (844,716)  (68,312)
138,262 11,181 11,477 928

8,026 649
(11,574) (936) (22,136)  (1,790)

187,451 15,159

(315,917)  (25,548)
(1,706,781) (138,027) 906,238 73,287
212,717 17,202 50,863 4,113
(873,412)  (70,633) (959,743)  (77,614)
117,593 9,510 (109,767)  (8,877)
554,294 44,826 306,496 24,786
540,613 43,719 180,979 14,636

106,696 8,629
658,501 53,253 (531,172)  (42,956)
(17,388)  (1,406) (149,634)  (12,101)
15,000 1,213
11,574 936 22,136 1,790
652,687 52,783 (643,670)  (52,054)
(20,549)  (1,662) (15,757)  (1,274)
(58,851)  (4,759)

663,980 53,696
(177,391)  (14,346) (128,442)  (10,387)
466,040 37,689 (203,050)  (16,421)

(128,898)  (10,424)

(128,898)  (10,424)
989,829 80,047 (846,720)  (68,474)
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6,245,307 505,058 7,092,027 573,532

7,235,136 585,105 6,245,307 505,058
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UTI
2021 31
UTI 2006
11 15
uTl
UTl
UTI AMC
048617 08 02
3 Raffles Place, #08-02, Bharat Building, Singapore 048617
2.1
FRS
2.2
FRS 103
FRS 116 CovID-19
FRS FRS
CovID-19

2.3

FRS 116
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FRS 103 2022
FRS 116 2022
FRS 37 2022
2.4
2.5

2.14

2.6
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EIR
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FVOCI FVPL FVPL

FVPL
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FVPL
2.8
2.9
FVPL ECL
ECL
ECL
12 12 ECL ECL
ECL
ECL

ECL

90

2.10
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2.11

2.12

CPF

uTl

2.13
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2.14

2.6

2.15
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2.16
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2.17
2.18
JSS
JGI
2.19
2021 31 114,590
2020 34,935 2021 31

188,775 2020 165,473
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2021 2020
484,592 510,164
8,867,120 7,591,813
99
915,335 967,917
11,574 22,136
196,222 135,303

211,046
1,178,439 1,182,254
11,864,328 10,409,686
2019 15 uTl
COVID-19
JSS
JGlI
JSS

2021 2020

3,396,242 3,030,832
18 187,451

188,368 183,936
607,837 665,606

4,379,898 3,880,374
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2021 2020
893,828 893,828
127,005

17,475 17,475
1,038,308 911,303
2021 2020
5,721,517 4,704,359
5,776 297,939
70,543 178,125
149,130 560,979
51,444 72,319
121,569 98,429
289,740 268,941
50,740 36,058
360,595 194,571
37,051 68,029
68,002 69,166
401,972 (298,207)
8,026
119,511 205,605

7,455,616 6,456,313
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2021 2020
103,590 34,935
(6,547) 88,634
(23,301) (38,539)
(15,000)
73,742 70,030
31
2021 2020

1,913,250 (844,716)
325,253 (143,602)
152,011 127,078

(399,416)
27,554 53,475
(23,301) (38,539)
(1,812) (1,987)
(6,547) 88,634
(15,000)
(29)
73,742 70,030

28
FSI FSI
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2019 30,834 119,043 188,518 338,395
3,336 668 11,753 15,757

2020 31
2020 34,170 119,711 200,271 354,152
9,014 11,535 247,184 267,733
2021 31 34,170 128,725 211,806 247,184 621,885
2019 30,358 119,043 168,314 317,715
2020 969 108 10,400 11,477

2020 31
2020 31,327 119,151 178,714 329,192
2021 1,326 1,137 12,207 123,592 138,262
2021 31 32,653 120,288 190,921 123,592 467,454
2020 31 2,843 560 21,557 24,960
2021 31 1,517 8,437 20,885 123,592 154,431

2021 2020

6,211,922 4,675,812
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2021 2020
218,806 253,092
92,709 69,138
106,669 206,406
GST 9,396 12,594
821 4,765
428,401 545,995
2021 2020
1,399,011 1,467,885
5,836,125 4,777,422
7,235,136 6,245,307
0.25 2020 1.75
2021 2020
1,110,439 973,373
800,000 550,000
29,946 50,616
987,463 611,034
591,282 673,116
3,519,130 2,858,139

30
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2021

247,184
8,026

(128,898)
126,312

2020

600

6,000,000 600 6,000,000

2021 2020
3,715,671 2,929,604
244,576 157,231
3,960,247 3,086,835
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15

2021

31

2021 2020
8,867,120 6,962,047
99
915,335 967,917
1,178,439 1,182,254
484,592 510,164
321 460
1,925,504 1,231,242
934,940 600,775

31

2021 2020
287,339 385,487
270,824 213,058
3,062,269 2,252,584
95,239 78,475
735,813 376,019
355,916 175,097
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2021 2020
188,775 165,473
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18

uTl 2007 UTI AMC

ESOP

2019 12 16 ESOP 66,088
728

ESOP
2019 12 16
728
728

6.33%

39.78%
276

2021 31

2019 12 16
66,088

0

0

0

12,702
53,386
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93.82 2020 94.91
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1,399,011 2020 1,467,885
11,429,415 2020 8,282,744
153,535
2020 118,004
2020
2021 FVPL
124,238 2020 93,516
20
21

2021 31 2021 19
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2021

Mote 2021 2020
55 55
Mon-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment and right-of-use asset T 154,431 24 8960
Irvestment securities B 6,211,922 4675812
Deferred tax asseat 16 188,775 165,473
6555128 4866245
Current assets
Trade debtors 14 3,960 247 3,088 835
Sundry debtors, prepayments and deposits L!] 4284 545,995
Cash and cash equivalents 10 7,235,136 6,245,307
11,6823 784 9878137
Current liabilities
Accruals and other liabilities 11 3.519130 2858 139
Amaunts owing to halding company 14 735,813 376,019
Amounts owing to ultimate holding company 14 395,916 175,097
Lease liability 12 126,312 -
Income tax payable 114,590 34935
4851, 761 3,444 190
Met current assets 6772023 5,433,947
Net assets 13,327 151 11,300,182
Equity
Share capital 13 6,000,000 6,000,000
Retained earmings 7139700 5,300192
Cther reserves 187,451 -
13,327 151 11,300,192

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information farm an infegral part of the
financial stalernents,
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

Mote 2021 2020
55 5%

Revenue 3 11,864 328 10,409 686
Unrealised gainsf(losses) on financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss 1,706,781 (906 238)
Realised gains from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 35917 -
Met operating income 13,887,026 9,503 448
Expenses
Salaries and other related expenses 4 4379 898 3880374
Depreciation 7 138 262 11,477
Other operating expenses 5 7455816 6,456 313
Total expenses 11,973,776 10,348,164
Profit{loss) before taxation 1,913,250 (844.716)
Tax expense L (73,742) {70,030)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,838,508 (914,7486)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanalory information form an infegral part of the

financial statements,
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Statement of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021
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Share capital
Balance at beginning and end of year

Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of year
Profitf{loss) for the year

Balance at end of year

Other reserves
Share options granted during the year

Total equity

Note 2021 2020
53 53

13 6,000,000 6,000,000
5,300,192 6,214,938
1,839,508 (914,748)

£,138,700 9,300,192

167,451 -

13,327,131 11,300,192

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the

financial statements.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Cash flow statement
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
55 =3

Cash flows from operating activities
Profitf{loss) before taxation 1,913,250 (844,716)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 138,262 11,477

Interest expense on lease liability 8,026 =

Interest income on fixed deposits (11,574) (22, 138)

Employee stock options 187,451 -

Realised (gains) from financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (315,817) -
Urrealised (gains)losses on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (1,706,781) 806,238

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 292717 50,863
Changes in operating assets and labilites:
(Increase)/decrease in;

Trade debtors (873,412) (659,743)

Sundry dabtors, prepayments and deposits 117,583 (109, 7E7)
(Decreasejincrease in

Aeoruals and other liabilities 554,204 306,455

Amounts owing to related companies 540,613 180,879

Deferred income 106 696 -
Cash flows used in operating activities 658,501 (531,172)

Income tax paid {17,388) (149 834)

Tax refund received - 15,000

Interest income on fixed deposits 11,574 22136
Met cash flows used in operating activities 652 8687 (843 670)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (20, 549) (15, 757)
Purchase of investment securty - (58,851)
Cash on redemption of investment security 663,980 -
Dividend income reinvested for purchase of investment security (177,391 (128,442)
Met cash flows used in investing activities 456,040 (203, 0500
Cash flows from financing activity
Fayment of principal portion of lease liability (128,898) -
Met cash flows used in financing activity (128 898) -
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year Q89 820 (848, T20)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,245 307 7,002 027
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 10) 7,235,135 5,245,307

The accompanying accounting policies and explanafory information form an integral part of the
financial slatements.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

1. Corporate information

UTI International {Singapore) Private Limited (the "Company”} is a private limited compary
incorporated in Singapore on 15 November 2008, Its immediate haolding company is UTI
International Limited, incorporated under the laws of Guernsey, Channel Islands. The
ultimate holding company is UTI Asset Management Company Ltd ("UTI AMC"), a public
limited company incorporated under the laws of India.

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of fund management services. There
has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the financial year.

The registered office and principal place of business is 3 Raffles Place, #08-02 Bharat
Building, Singapore 048617.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

21 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS").

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as disclosed
in the policies,

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (*SGD" or “S$"), the Company's
functional currency.

22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Company has also adopted the following financial reporting standards and
interpretations during the financial year:

. Amendments to FRS 103 Definition of a Businsss
. Amendments to FRS 116 Covid-19 Relafed Rent Concessions
. Amendments to FRS 1 and FRS 8 Dafinition of Mataral

The Company has adopted the amendments to FRS 116 which provides a practical
expedient for a lessee to not assess gualifying Covid-18 related rent concessions from a
lessor for lease modifications. The adoption of these amendments did not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

2, Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
23 Standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has not adopted the following standards that have been issued but not yet

effective:
Effective for annual
periods beginning on

Descriptions or after
Amendment to FRS 103 Refarence to the Conceptual

Framework 1 January 2022
Amendment to FRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment -

Proceeds befors Intended Use 1 January 2022
Amendment to FRS 37 Onerous Confracts - Cost of Fulfiing a

Contract 1 January 2022

The directors expect that the adoption of the above pronouncements will have no material
impact to the financial statements in the period of initial application.

24 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the financial year are translated at rates closely
approximating those ruling on the transaction dates. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated into its functional currency at exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period.  All exchange differences arising are included in profit or loss.

25 Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

All iterns of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost and are recognised
as an assat if, and only, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the iterns
will flow to the Company. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with property and equipment in the statement of
financial position = refer to accounting policy in Mote 2.14.

Cepreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of asset as

follows:

Office fumiture and equipmenit - 3dyears
Fixtures and fittings - Jyears
Computers - 3years

The carrying values of properly, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable,

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year
end to ensure the amounts, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodies
in the items of property, plant and equipment,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gains or losses arising on
derecognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the financial year the asset is
derecognised.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
28 impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate
of the assel’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used, These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators. Where the camying amounts of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amounts, the asset is written-down to its recoverable amounts.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously re-
valued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amounts of any
previous revaluation.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amounts since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the assets is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot excead the carrying amounts that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
previously., Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at
revalued amount, inwhich case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

27 Financial instruments
(a) Financial assels

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amourts collected on behalf of third party, if the
trade receivables do not contain 2 significant financing component at initial
recognition,

Subsequent measurement

(i) Amaortised cost

The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost i both the
conditions are met; the financial assat is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flow that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the staterment of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales
or other operating expenses for recaivables.

The Compary classifies cash and cash equivalents, trade debtors and
sundry debtors, and deposits as financial assets at amortised cost.

(i) Financial assats through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is subseguently
measurad at FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss inthe period inwhich it arises.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows
from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income for dekt instruments is recognised in profit or loss.,
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2

27

28

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Financial instruments (cont'd)
(k) Financial liabifities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company
determines the classification of its financial liabilties at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabilities not at FVPL, directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial habilities include accruals and other liabilities (except provision for bonus
and long-term incentives), amounts owing to holding company and amounts owing
to ultimate holding company.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at FVPL are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and
through the amortisation process,

Derecognition

A financial liabilty is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition, the difference between the
carrying amounts and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilties are offset and the net amount is presented in the
balance sheets, when and only when, there is a currently enforceable legal right to set-off

the recogrised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
29 impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") for all debt
instruments not held at FVYPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the criginal effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irespective of timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified appreach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 80 days
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

210  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and on hand and deposits held with
reputable banks.

211 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate, If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of
meney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liabiity. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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2, Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
212  Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribulions plans

The Company participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws
of the countries in which it has operations. In particular, the Company makes
contributions to the Central Provident Fund (CPF) scheme in Singapore, a defined
contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution  pension
schemes are recognised as an expense in the financial peried in which the related
service is performed,

() Long-term incenfives

The net liability for the long-term incentives is the aggregate of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation (derived using a discount rate based on risk free rate)
at the end of the reporting period.

fc) Employee stock oplions

The Employee Stock Option Scheme provides for the grant of options to acquire
equity shares of the holding company UTI Asset Management Company Limited to
its eligible employees of the subsidiary company are measured at fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. The period of vesting and period of exercise
are as specified within the respective schemes.

The fair value of the options is measured using the Black-Scholes valuation method
or other generally accepted valuation technigues. The calculation takes into account
the terms and conditions under which the options are granted. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payments is expensad
over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. Subsequent fair value
adjustments are not recognised in the income statement.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in
the computation of diluted earnings per share.

213  Operating leases

Cperating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

214 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a cortract is, or containg, a lease, That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

180/258



EDINETOOOO
OO00ooo0ooo0obo00O00o0o00Dbo00oDO0oO0nono(E21970)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

2, Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
214  Leases {cont'd)
Righi-of-use assels

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilties. The cost of right-of-use assefs includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are presented within MNote 7 Property, equipment and right-of-use
assels and are subjected to impairment in line with the Company's pelicy as described in
Mote 2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease liabitties

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (less any lease incentives receivable), variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects exercising the option to terminate. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

215  Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised when the Company
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to the customer,
which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance obligation
may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue recognised is the
amourt allocated to the satisfied performance abligation.

Revenue comprises primarily of management fee, marketing fee, advisory fee and business
service support fee. Management fee, marketing fee, advisory fee and business service
support fee income are recognised in the financial year in which the services are rendered.
The major revenue ie investment management fees the Company is entitled to, are
calculated based on predetermined percentages with reference to the Asset Under
Management of the respective funds. As a result, investment management fee represents
variable consideration and is recognised aonce it is highly probable that it will not be subject
to significant reversal and is allocated to the distinct service periods. Management fees are
recognised over time in the period in which the services are rendered as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Compary.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2186 Taxes
(a) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax
relates to iterns recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(b)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liabilty method on temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset in a
transaction that is not a2 business combination and, at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, if it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carry-
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all ar part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the financial year when the asset is realised or the liability is seftled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if 2 legally enforceable right

exists to set-off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’'d)
216  Taxes (cont'd)
(c) Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax
except:

- Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense itern as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax
included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autharity
is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

217  Share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted
against share capital,

218  Government grants

Government grants are recognised as a receivable when there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense itemn, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant
relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life
of the related asset  During the year, the Company received grants in relation to the Jobs
Support Scheme ("JSS7), Property Tax Rebate and Jobs Growth Incentive {"JGI7).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’'d)
218  Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities at the end of each
reparting period.  Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future periods.

Judgement made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgement, apart from those involving estimations, which has a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxation

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Company's provision for taxation. There
are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for
expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recegnised,
such differences will impact the current income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which determination is made. The camying amount of the Company’s income tax payable
as at 31 March 2021 was S5114,590 (2020 5534,935). The camying amount of the
Company's deferred tax asset at 31 March 2021 was S$188,775 (2020: S5165,473).
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3. Revenue
2021 2020
S5 S5
Marketing fees 484 592 510,164
Management fees B B6T 120 7591813
Advisory fees - 22
Business support service fees 915,335 967,917
Interest income on fixed deposits 11,574 22138
Cther income 198,222 135,303
Grant income 211,046 -
Other income - Intra-group recharges 1,178,439 1,182 254

11,864,328 10,409 688

On 15 September 2019, the Company signed an agreement with its immediate holding
compary, UT| International Limited in consideration for the intra-group support services
rendered by the Company. The Company recharges a portion of its expenses to its
immediate holding company, at arm's length using the transactional net margin method.

The government grants are non-refundable rebates from government relating to rental and
staff related expenses incurred by the Branch in the course of business. During the year,
the Company received several government grants as part of the COVID-19 Government
Relief Measures. These grants include the Jobs Support Scheme (“JSS"), Property Tax
Rebate and Jobs Growth Incentive ("JGI"). The Company has recognised these government
grants as grant income.

In relation to the JSS grant, the stated purpose of the grant is to provide wage support to
entities to retain local employees during the pericd of economic uncertainty.

4, Salaries and other related expenses
2021 2020
S35 S5
Salaries and bonuses 3,395,242 3,030,832
Employee stock options (Mote 18) 187,451 -
CPF confributions 188 368 183,936
Crher staff related costs 607,837 565,606
4379898 3,880,374

Salaries and other related expenses comprise of amounts paid to directors of the Company
are as follows:

2021 2020
S5 s3
Salaries and bonuses B93 828 893 828
Employee stock options 127,005 -
CPF contributions 17,475 17,475
1,038,308 911,303
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8. Other operating expenses

Management fee expenses
Travel and entertainment
Operating lease expenses
Legal and professional fees
Communication expense
Insurance expense
Operational expenses
Repair and maintenance
Service administration fees
Business promotion expenses
Directors' fees

Foreign exchange losses/{gains)

Interest on lease liability
Others

. Tax expense

Tax expense attributable to profit is made

up of:
- Current income tax

- (Over)funderprovision in respect of previous years
- Deferred income credit from tempaorary differences

- Tax credit

186/258

2021 2020
S$ S5
5721517 4,704,359
5,776 297,939
70,543 178,125
148,130 560,979
51,444 72,319
121,569 98,429
289,740 268,941
50,740 36,058
360,595 194,571
37,051 68,029
68,002 69,166
401,972 (298,207)
8,026 -
119,511 205,605
7455616 6,456,313
2021 2020
S5 S5
103,590 34,935
(6,547) 88,634
(23,301) (38,539)
- (15,000)
73,742 70,030
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6. Tax expense (cont'd)

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accournting profit multiplied by the
applicable tax rate for the financial years ended 31 March were as follow:

2021 2020
58 55
Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,913,250 (244 716)
Tax expense/(credit) calculated at tax rate of 17%
(2020 17%) 325,253 (143,602)
Adjustments.
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 152,011 127,078
Income not subject to taxation (399, 418) -
Effect of partial tax exemption, tax relief and tax
rebate 27,5954 593,475
Ceferred tax on tempaorary differences (23,301) (38,539)
Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses
and capital allowances (1,812) (1,987)
(Cwver)funderprovision in respect of previous years (6,547) 88,634
Tax credit - (15,000)
Cthers - (29
Tax expense recognised in profit or loss 73,742 70,030

The Company was granted the Financial Sector Incentive Award (Fund Management or
Investment Advisory Services) ("FSI7), effective from 22 April 2016 to 28 April 2021. Under
the FSI, the Company is entitted to a concessionary rate of tax of 10% on qualifying
transactions under the provision of Concessionary Rate of Tax for Financial Sector Incentive
Companies in section 430 of the Income Tax Act (Chapter 134).
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T. Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use asset
Office
furniture
and Fixtures Right-of-use
equipment and fittings Computers asset Total
55 S 55 BE 55

Cost
At 1 April 2019 30,834 115,043 188 518 - 338 385
Additions 3,338 668 11,753 - 16,757
At 31 March 2020 and

at 1 April 2020 34170 119,711 200,271 - 354 152
Additions - 8,014 11,535 247 184 267 733
At 31 March 2021 34,170 128,725 211,806 247 184 621 885
Accumulated

depreciation
At 1 April 2019 30,358 118,043 168,314 - 37,715
Charge for 2020 969 108 10,400 - 11,477
At 31 March 2020 and

at 1 April 2020 31,327 118,151 178,714 - 329 192
Charge for 2021 1,326 1,137 12,207 123,592 138,262
At 31 March 2021 32 653 120,288 190 921 123,592 467 454
Met book value
At 31 March 2020 2,843 560 21,557 - 24 960

At 31 March 2021 1,917 8,.43r 20,885 123,982 154,431
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B. Investment securities
2021 2020
55 55
At fair value through profit or loss
- Quoted investment securities 6211922 4675812
a. Sundry debtors, prepayments and deposits
2021 2020
S35 85
Frepayments 218 806 253 092
Deposits 92 709 69 138
Fecoverable expense 106,669 206,406
MNet GST receivable 9 396 12594
Accrued interest receivable B 4 765
428 401 545 G05

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits. Cash and
cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprige the following balance sheet

amounts:
2021 2020
55 S8
Fixed deposits 1,399,011 1,467 8BS
Cash and bank balances 9836125 4777422
7235136 8,245 307

Fixed deposits eam interest at 0.25% (2020: 1.75%).
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1.

12,

13.

Accruals and other liabilities

2021 2020
S5 S5
Provision for long-term incentives 1,110,439 873,373
Provision for bonus 800,000 550,000
Accrued staff costs 29945 30,616
Accrued management fee expenses G987 4563 611,054
Cthers 591,282 673,116
3,519,130 2858139

Accruals and other payables are unsecured, interest-free and typically payable within

30 days,

Lease liability

As at 1 Apnl
Addition

Accretion of interest
Payments

As at 31 March

Share capital

Issued and fully
paid:

At beginning and
end of year

2021

201
5%

247,184
8,026
(128,898)

126,312

2020

MNo. of shares 5% Mo. of shares =53

600 &,000,000 G600

6,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions. The ordinary
shares have no par value.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

14. Trade debtors

2021 2020
S5 S5
Fecevable from related companies (Mote 15) 3715671 2.829.604
Receivable from third parties 244 576 157,231
3960247 3,086,835

Trade debtors are trade-related, unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and
are to be settled in cash.

15. Related party transactions

For the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the related party transactions were as follows.

2021 2020
58 55

Revenue
Fee from funds under management 8,867,120 6,962,047
Advisory fee from holding compary - 99
Business support service fee from ultimate holding

company 915,335 967 917
Intra group cost recharge to holding company 1,175,439 1,182,204
Marketing fees

Cther related companies 484 592 510,164
Interest income on fixed deposit with related financial

institution 321 450
Expenses
Management fee expenses

Halding cormpary 1,925,504 1,231,242

Ultimate halding company 934,940 B00, 775
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18.

186,

Related party transactions (cont'd)

At 31 March, balances resulting from related party transactions were as follows:

2021 2020
S5 s3
Assets
Trade debtors owing from:
Haolding company 287 338 385,487
Ultimate holding company 270,824 213,058
Funds under management 3062269 2,252 584
Other related companies 95 238 78,475
Liabilities
Amounts owing to!
Haolding company 735,813 378,019
Uitimate holding company 355,916 175 097

Trade debtors owing from and amounts owing fo related companies are trade-related,
unsecured, nen-interest bearing, repayable on dermand and are to be settled in cash.

The Company currently does not offset balances with related parties and trade debtors owing
from and amounts owing to related companies are presented at gross in the statement of
financial position.

Deferred tax asset
2021 2020
55 S8
Provision for long-term incentives 168,775 165,473
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

17. Fair value of financial instruments

The Company’s principal financial instruments are cash and short-term deposits, trade and
sundry debtors, amounts owing to related companies, and accruals and ather liabilities,

The carrying amounts of these financial instruments are reascnakble approximation of fair
values due to their short-term nature.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is
dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities that
the Company can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable far the
asset or liability, either directly; and

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset of liability.

Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
o the entire measurement.

Investment securilies

Fair value is determined directly by reference to their published market price or broker quotes
at the end of the reporting period without factoring in transaction costs (Level 1).

18. Share-based payment transactions

The holding company UTI Asset Management Company Limited introduced an Employee
Stock Option Scheme ("ESOP") called the "UTI AMC Employee Stock Option Scheme -
2007". Eligible employees of the Company were granted the options.

On 16 December 2012, under the ESOP scheme, 65 088 stock options of the halding
company have been granted to the eligible employees of the Company. Each option entitles
the holder to apply for and be allotted Equity Shares granted by the holding company, for an
exercise price of INR 728 per share during the exercise penod.

The vesting of an option shall commence from the date of grant and shall not be earlier than
one year from the date of grant of the option, or as may be determined by the holding
company's Board of the Compensation Committee, up to a maximum of four years from the
date of grant of the option.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

18. Share-based payment transactions (cont'd)

Employee stock aplion schame (Equity setlied)

Particulars ESOP
Date of Grant 16 December 2019
Frice of Underlying Stock INR ¥28

| Exercise / Strike Price (in INR) INR 728

The fair value of the options grarted was estimated on the date
of grant using the Black Scholes Model with the following

assumptions:

Risk Free Interest Rate 6.33%

Expected Dividend IMNR 5 per share

Expected Life (years) 4 Years (mid - way
between option
vesting and expiry)

| Expected Volatility 39.78%
Wieighted Average Fair Value of Options INR 276

The information covering stock options granted, exercised, forfeited and outstanding at the
period end is as follows:

Particulars MNo. of stock options
as at 31 March 2021

Date of Grant 16 December 2019

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 65,088

Granted during the period 0

Exercised during the period 0

Forfeited during the period 0

Lapsedfexpired durnng the period 12702

QOutstanding at the end of the period 53,388

Vested and exercisable ]
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

19,

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The directors consider that their main risk management objectives is to monitor and mitigate
material risks, which they consider to include credit risk, liquidity rsk, interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk. Several procedures are in place to enable materal risks to be
adequately managed. These include preparation and review of annual forecasts and monthiy
management accounts.

The key risks are summarised below:
(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments
should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit
risk arises primarily from trade and other debtors, For other financial assets
{including cash and cash equivalents), the Company minimise credit risk by dealing
exclusively with high credit rating counterparties. At the end of the reporting period,
93.82% (2020 94 91%) of the trade debtors were due from related parties.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets recognised in the balance sheet.

()] Financial assets that are naither past due nor impaired

Trade and other debtors that are neither past due nor impaired are with
credit worthy debtors with good payment record with the Company. The
Compary derives its main source of revenue from providing fund
management services to its affiliates, Exposure to credit risk arising from
related party transactions is minimal as these affiliates are of good credit
standing. Cash is placed only with major international bank.

{iii) Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

There is no financial asset that is either past due or impaired, or would be
otherwise past due and not impaired as at 31 March 2021.

{s] Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily frorn mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company's policy on liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient cash and
the awvailability of funding Cash balances and forecast cash movements are
reviewed on a regular basis, bank reconciliations are prepared and reviewed daily
and management accounts are prepared and reviewed monthly to ensure that the
Company maintains adequate working capital. The Company's financial assets and
liabilities are short-term in nature which mitigates the risk of default on financial
obligations. At the end of the reporting pericd, all of the Company's financial
liabilities will mature in less than one year based on the carmrying amount reflected in
the financial statements.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

19. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
() Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company's
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest-bearing assets are cash
deposits placed with banks of $31,399,011 (2020: 531,457 885). The Company’s
policy is to maximise the returns on these interest-bearing assets. The Company
does not have any borrowings.

) Foreign currency risk

The Company has transactional currency exposures arising mainly  from
intercompany receivables and distribution fees payable, which are demnominated in
currency other than SGD. The foreign currency in which these receivables are
denominated is mainly United States dollars ("USD" or "US3$").

As at end of the reporting period, the balance denominated in USD amounted to
LUISE11,429 415 (2020: USE8,282 744). With all other variables held constant, a 1%
strengthening of USD against SGD would result in an increase in profit{loss) before
taxation of approximately 55153535 (2020: 55118,004).

(e Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The
Company is exposad to equity price risk arising from its investment securities.

The Company's objective is to manage investment retums and price risk using a mix
of investment grade shares with steady dividend yield and non-investment grade
shares with higher volatility.

Sensitivity analysis for price risk

Al the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the investment securities had been
2% (2020: 2%) higherlower with all other variables held constant, the Company's
profit before tax for 2020 would have been S5%124 238 (2020: S%93516)
higherflower, arising as a result of an increasel/decrease in the fair value of
investment securities classified as FVPL.
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UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

20, Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide investment advisory
servicas to affiliates. The Company's management monitor the capital structure and make
adjustments to it as needed. Inorder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, management
would maintain low expenses/costs and focus on new business opportunities.

21. Authorisation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 were
authonsed for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 19 April 2021.
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G A S
G.A.S. Cayman Limited

2021 48 5,256

2001 10

Ninety One Guernsey Limited

2021 20 3,055
2021 30 UFJ 152.76
8509
uTl
2008 11 17

SA
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited)

2021 40 6,110 6,250 81 3,188
2021 30 UFJ 130.11

1995
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Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London Branch

2021 3,420

1925

2021 5,122

G A S

G.A.S. Cayman Limited

Ninety One Guernsey Limited

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited)
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Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London Branch
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1993

1960

2021 30 11,771

https://www.cima.ky/upimages/commonfiles/QuarterlyListofal IMutualFundsregisteredandlicensedwiththeCaymanlslandsMonetaryAuthority-
30June2021_ 1625765870.pdf

1993

2020
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of South African Rand Money Market Fund, a series trust of Horizon Trust,
(the “Series Trust”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, the statement of
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at March 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRS”).

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
schedule of investments (unaudited) but does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

KPMG
September 15, 2021
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/s/Ernst & Young LLP

2021 19
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UTI Internationa (Singapore) Private Limited

Independent auditor's report
For the financial year ended 31 March 2021

Independent auditor’s report to the member of UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of UTI International (Singapore) Private Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the financial year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSS’) so as to
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and of the financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“ SSAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for other information which comprises the general information and directors
Statement.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financia statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

19 April 2021
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